
 

 

AGENDA 

 

 FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

4:00 p.m., Monday, June 13, 2016 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 
 

Room 239, City Hall 
__________________________________________ 

 
 COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Council Member Robert C. Clark, Chair 

     Council Member Denise D. Adams, Vice Chair 

     Council Member Vivian H. Burke 

     Council Member Derwin L. Montgomery 

 

 

GENERAL AGENDA 
 
G-1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM TO 

PARTICIPATE IN THE SUBMISSION OF A CHOICE NEIGHBORHOODS 
PLANNING GRANT WITH THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-
SALEM. 

 
G-2. INFORMATION REGARDING A REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE FROM THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-SALEM FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT 
OF NEW HOPE MANOR APARTMENTS. 

 
G-3. RESOLUTION APPROVING VARIOUS LEASE AGREEMENTS AND 

ESTOPPELS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE SALE OF THE DOWNTOWN 
MARRIOTT AND EMBASSY SUITES HOTELS TO HOSPITALITY VENTURES 
MANAGEMENT GROUP. 

 
G-4. REPORT ON DEMOLITION ASSESSMENT AT 4640 INDIANA AVENUE. 

 
G-5. REVIEW OF PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 BUDGET. 

 



AGENDA June 13, 2016 Page 2 
 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Property Matters 

 
C-1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AT 2619 

BETHABARA ROAD FOR NEW PARK CONSTRUCTION (NORTH WARD). 
 
C-2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED 

PROPERTY AT 426 WEST CLEMMONSVILLE ROAD UNDER THE UPSET BID 
PROCEDURE N.C.G.S. 160A-269 (SOUTHEAST WARD). [$35,000]. 

 
Community and Economic Development 

 
C-3. RESOLUTION DESIGNATING WHITAKER PARK DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY, INC. AS THE BEST QUALIFIED DEVELOPER AND 
ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR APPROVAL OF THE 
PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP CONTRACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 
143-128.1C. Public Hearing: August 15, 2016. 

 
C-4. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATING TO THE DOWNTOWN WINSTON-

SALEM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 
 

a. RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT WITH THE DOWNTOWN 
WINSTON-SALEM PARTNERSHIP TO PROVIDE SERVICES WITHIN THE 
DOWNTOWN WINSTON-SALEM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT. 

 
b. ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 OF THE CITY CODE ENTITLED 

“ADMINISTRATION”. 
 
C-5. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO $236,000 IN ADDITIONAL PERMANENT 

FINANCING FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 64 UNITS OF RENTAL HOUSING 
FOR FAMILIES, TO BE KNOWN AS ROCKWOOD AT OLIVER’S CROSSING 
APARTMENTS (SOUTH WARD). Items continued from the April and May meetings 

of the Finance and Community Development/Housing/General Government 

Committees. 
 
Finance/Budget 

 
C-6. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO CONTRACTS: 

 
a. RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH DATA NETWORK 

SOLUTIONS, INC. FOR COMPUTER STORAGE EQUIPMENT- Data 

Network Solutions, Inc.  $309,754.00. 
 

b. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR DITCH MAINTENANCE - 
Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc. - $361,250 (Estimated Amount). 



AGENDA June 13, 2016 Page 3 
 

 

 
c. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR STRUCTURE 

ADJUSTMENTS - Ascent Construction Solutions, LLC - $149,875.00 (Estimated 

Amount). 
 

d. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SIDEWALK 
CONSTRUCTION ALONG OLD TOWN DRIVE - Dalton Contracting, LLC -

 $122,789 (Estimated Amount). 
 

e. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR CONCRETE BASE STREETS 
REHABILITATION - APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Thompson-Arthur Division - 

$3,097,298 (Estimated Amount). 
 

f. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR ROAD SALT - The Detroit 

Salt Company, LLC. - $202,440 (Estimated Amount). 
 

g. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR CONVENTIONAL 
CAB TRUCK WITH HOOK LIFT HOIST BODY - White's Tractor and Truck 

Co., LLC. - $128,540.67 (Estimated Amount).  
 

h. RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE ORDER FOR VEHICLE PARTS 
AND SUPPLIES - NAPA Auto Parts, Inc. - $150,000 (Estimated Amount). 

 
i. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDERS FOR AUTO AND 

TRUCK TIRES - Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company - $100,000 (Estimated 

Amount); Parrish Tire Company, Inc. - $120,000 (Estimated Amount); Mock Tire 

& Automotive, Inc. - $70,000 (Estimated Amount); and Snider Tire Company - 

$160,000 (Estimated Amount). 
 

j. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDERS FOR  EQUIPMENT FOR 
THE FLEET DEPARTMENT WITH CERTAIN SOLE SOURCE VENDORS - 
Various Vendors - $982,000 (Estimated Amount). 

 
k. RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE ORDER FOR AUTO AND 

TRUCK PARTS AND SUPPLIES - Auto Supply Company, Inc.- $130,000 

(Estimated Amount); Carquest Auto Parts - $90,000 (Estimated Amount); and 

Auto Zone Stores, LLC - $35,000 (Estimated Amount). 
 

l. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR TOWING SERVICES 
- Davis Garage, Inc. - $120,000 (Estimated Amount). 

 
m. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SPRAYGROUND AT 

REYNOLDS PARK POOL - DreamBuilt Construction, Inc. -  $297,250 

(Estimated Amount). 
 

n. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SPRAYGROUND AT SEDGE 
GARDEN PARK. 



AGENDA June 13, 2016 Page 4 
 

 

 
C-7. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO CONTRACT FOR WINSTON 

LAKE AQUATIC PARK: 
 

a. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR WINSTON LAKE AQUATIC 
PARK - Bar Construction Company -  $4,713,000 (Estimated Amount). 

 
b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 

THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2015-2016. 

 
C-8. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO WAIVE BONDING 

REQUIREMENTS BELOW THE STATUTORY LIMITS. 
 
C-9. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 

BUDGET ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH 
CAROLINA: 

 
a. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND TAX 

LEVY ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016. 

 
b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 

THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2015-2016. 

 
Transportation 

 
C-10. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS 40 PROJECT 

BETTERMENTS: 
 

a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR PEDESTRIAN AND SIDEWALK 
IMPROVEMENTS ON CLOVERDALE AVENUE AND MILLER STREET. 

 
b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 

THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2015-2016. 

 
General Government 

 
C-11. APPROVAL OF FINANCE COMMITTEE SUMMARY OF MINUTES - May 9, 

2016. 
 



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: May 16, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: D. Ritchie Brooks, Community & Business Development Director 

Council Action Requested: 

Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the City of Winston-Salem to Participate in the 
Submission of a Choice Neighborhoods Implementation Grant Application with the Housing 
Authority of Winston-Salem.   

Summary of Information:  
At the May meeting of the Finance Committee, the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem 
(HAWS) presented information related to its pursuit of a Choice Neighborhoods Implementation 
Grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  In 2013, HAWS 
was awarded a Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant from HUD which was used to develop a 
Transformation Plan for the Cleveland Avenue Corridor.  HAWS intends to apply for 
approximately $30,000,000 in Choice Neighborhoods Implementation Grant funding.  Should 
HAWS be awarded the grant, funds would be used to begin implementation of the 
Transformation Plan that was developed after award of the Choice Neighborhoods Planning 
Grant in 2013.  
 
HAWS is seeking to secure a commitment from the City on three items related to its pursuit of 
the Choice Neighborhoods Implementation Grant.  Firstly, HAWS requests that the City serve as 
a co-applicant on the grant.  The co-applicant signs the grant agreement along with the applicant 
and is jointly responsible for implementing the activities in the Transformation Plan.  The grant 
requires that the local government of jurisdiction serve as the co-applicant in the event that it is 
not the lead applicant.  
 
Secondly, HAWS is requesting that the City serve as the “Neighborhood Lead.”  Choice 
Neighborhoods Implementation Grants support the implementation of comprehensive 
neighborhood revitalization plans that are expected to achieve core goals in three distinct areas: 
housing, people and neighborhoods.  The role of the agency serving as the “neighborhood lead” 
is to create the conditions necessary for public and private reinvestment in distressed areas to  

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 
 

-1-

G-1.      DRAFT



offer the kinds of amenities and assets, including safety and commercial activity that are 
important to families’ choices about their community. 
 
Lastly, HAWS is requesting a commitment from the City to invest $4.5 million dollars over the 
6-year grant period within the boundaries of the choice neighborhood planning area.  The funds 
committed by the City would be used as leverage in the Critical Community Improvement 
category of the grant.  Funds spent in this category are to be used for community and economic 
development activities to enhance the neighborhood outcomes proposed in the Transformation 
Plan.  They must be used for physical community and economic development projects that 
enhance and accelerate the transformation of the neighborhood and the target housing being 
redeveloped.  Possible uses of funds include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Financing for commercial and economic development projects; 

• Neighborhood business façade improvement programs; 

• Place-making projects; 

• Neighborhood broadband; 

• Revolving loan funds for business attraction and retention; 

• Streetscape improvements above and beyond the City’s norm; 

• Programs to improve housing in the neighborhood surrounding the target housing 
subject of the grant application; and 

• Acquisition of underutilized land for new parks, community gardens or community 
facilities.   

 
Funds to carry out the above mentioned activities can be secured from a variety of sources.  City 
funding would only be committed in future budget years in the event that HAWS is awarded the 
grant. 
 
 
 

-2-

G-1.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM TO 

PARTICIPATE IN THE SUBMISSION OF A CHOICE NEIGHBORHOODS 

PLANNING GRANT WITH THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-

SALEM  

 

 
WHEREAS, in 2013, the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem (HAWS) was 

awarded a Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant from the U.S. Department of Housing 

and Urban Development; and 

WHEREAS, HAWS used this grant to develop a Transformation Plan for the 

Cleveland Avenue Corridor; and  

WHEREAS, HAWS intends to apply for $30,000,000 in Choice Neighborhoods 

Implementation Grant funding in order to begin implementation of the Transformation 

Plan that was developed after award of the Choice Neighborhoods Grant in 2013; and  

 WHEREAS, HAWS is seeking to secure a commitment from the City on three 

items related to its pursuit of the Choice Neighborhoods Implementation Grant; and 

 WHEREAS, firstly, HAWS requests the City agree to serve as a co-applicant on 

the grant application; and 

WHEREAS, secondly, HAWS requests that the City serve as the “Neighborhood 

Lead” agency responsible for creating the conditions necessary for public and private 

reinvestment in the Transformation Plan area; and  

WHEREAS, lastly, HAWS requests the City to commit to invest $4.5 million 

dollars over the 6-year grant period within the boundaries of the Choice Neighborhood 

planning area for purposes including, but not limited to: neighborhood business façade 

improvement programs, place-making projects, revolving loan funds for business 

-3-

G-1.      DRAFT



attraction and retention and streetscape improvements above and beyond the City’s norm; 

and 

WHEREAS, funds to carry out the above mentioned activities can be secured 

from a variety of sources. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that 

the City Manager is authorized to sign as a co-applicant on the Choice Neighborhoods 

Implementation Grant application.   

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City funding to support these initiatives 

would only be committed in future budget years in the event that HAWS is awarded the 

grant.   

  

 
 

-4-

G-1.      DRAFT



-5-

G-1.      DRAFT



 

-6-



 
 

 
 

TO: Mayor Joines and Members of City Council 

FROM: D. Ritchie Brooks, Director of Community and Business 
Development  

DATE: May 24, 2016 

SUBJECT: Housing Authority of Winston-Salem Request for Assistance 

CC: Lee Garrity, City Manager 
Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager 
Evan Raleigh, Deputy Director of Community and Business 
Development  

 
This is to advise that staff will present an item to the Mayor and City Council in August for 
action regarding a request from Housing Authority of Winston-Salem (HAWS) for 
financial assistance to acquire, demolish, and abate (as applicable) New Hope Manor 
Apartments (formerly Burke Village).  The complex is in the northern end of both the 
HAWS Master Plan area and Choice Neighborhoods grant area.  Additionally, it is in close 
proximity to the Cleveland Avenue Homes community which is owned by HAWS, and its 
potential management of the target property could be easily facilitated.   Per HAWS, the 
vacancy rate is nearly 70% and there is over $2.5M in outstanding bank debt.  There is an 
increase in crime in the area and the current owner has expressed an unwillingness to 
continue to “throw good money after bad” in the form of lease enforcement, maintenance, 
and/or rehab.   

 
HAWS has recently communicated with the lender, who is willing to dispose of the 
property at a significant loss, potentially allowing acquisition of the property for as little as 
$1.5M.  HAWS believes this could provide an appealing opportunity for an absentee 
investor to purchase the property, do some minimal rehab, and then continue to operate the 
property as untenable multifamily housing, perpetuating the blight and inhibiting the 
development of the surrounding area.  HAWS has expressed a strong desire to acquire the 
property, and acknowledge that acquiring it is only the beginning.  There is also a need to 
demolish and abate several of the buildings, and undertake rehab in the remaining buildings 
in order to bring them into a state of livability. 

 
HAWS believes $1.7M in assistance will permit it to acquire, demolish, abate, rehab, and 
operate the property in a sustainable manner. City staff will work with HAWS to prepare a 
presentation for Committee Meetings in August accompanied by an appropriate Council 
Action Request. 

 
If there is any additional information that staff can provide, please contact Derwick Paige at 
(336) 747-7473 or derwickp@cityofws.org. 

 

-7-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

-8-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 1, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

Consideration of a Resolution Approving Various Lease Agreements and Estoppels Necessary to 
Effectuate the Sale of the Downtown Marriott and Embassy Suites Hotels to Hospitality 
Ventures Management Group. 
 

Summary of Information:  
 
In February 2004, the Mayor and City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between the City and Noble Investments, LLC (now Noble Investment Group, LLC) 
regarding the acquisition of the Adam’s Mark Hotel and its management of the Benton 
Convention Center.  Noble Investment Group, LLC acquired the Adam’s Mark Hotel and 
repositioned the property into two separate hotels—a Marriott and an Embassy Suites.  Under the 
MOU, the City purchased for $10 million the 38,000 square feet of renovated meeting/support 
space in the lower level of the Embassy Suites, as well as the Grand Pavilion Ballroom (formerly 
Beneath The Elms).  The City currently leases the meeting and ballroom space to Noble 
Winston-Salem Associates West, LLC, the Embassy Suites owner, for $600,000 per year to 
cover the City’s annual debt payment from financing the purchase of the space. 
 
Recently, Noble Investment Group, LLC has been in negotiations with Hospitality Ventures 
Management Group to sell the two hotels and transfer management of the Benton Convention 
Center.  Hospitality Ventures Management Group was formed in 2001 and currently owns and/or 
operates 30 full-service, select service, and extended stay branded and independent properties 
and resorts in 14 states, totaling more than 6,451 guest rooms.  The company currently owns and 
operates the Marriott Greensboro Airport Hotel, near Piedmont Triad International Airport.  The 
companies are scheduled to close the sale in June. 
 
This Council Action Request Form includes a resolution approving the various lease agreements 
and estoppels required to effectuate the sale of the hotels.  Descriptions of each agreement are 
provided below. 

 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-9-

G-3.      DRAFT



Declaration of Condominium of Winston-Salem Convention Center Condominium.  This 
document certifies there are no issues (e.g., defaults, additional assignments) related to the 
condominium space in the Embassy Suites hotel property that is jointly owned by Noble Winston 
Salem Associates – West, LLC (current owner of the Embassy Suites) and the City. 

 

Estoppel and Lease Agreement for Ballroom and Conference Center Lease.  This document 
certifies there are no issues (e.g., defaults, additional assignments) related to the existing lease 
agreement for the Embassy Suites Conference Center and Grand Pavilion Ballroom.  The 
document also assigns the lease to HV Winston-Salem II, LLC, which is the corporation 
established as the owner of the Embassy Suites hotel property.  In addition, the document 
provides certain protections for the lender, RB Investment Services, LLC. The sale will also 
require the City’s consent to the assignment of the reciprocal easement agreement.  
 
City staff will prepare a separate action item for consideration and approval by the Public 
Assembly Facilities Commission to assign the Qualified Management Agreement for the Benton 
Convention Center to Hospitality Ventures Management Group.  The Commission will consider 
this action at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 20th. 
 
City staff recommends approval of the attached resolution authorizing the execution of the 
various agreements necessary to effectuate the sale of the downtown Marriott and Embassy 
Suites. 

 

-10-

G-3.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION APPROVING VARIOUS LEASE AGREEMENTS AND ESTOPPELS 

NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE SALE OF THE DOWNTOWN MARIOTT AND 

EMBASSY SUITES HOTELS TO HOSPITALY VENTURES MANAGEMENT GROUP 

 

 

 WHEREAS, in February 2004, the Mayor and City Council approved a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the City and Noble Investments, LLC (now Noble Investment 

Group, LLC) regarding the acquisition of the Adam’s Mark Hotel and their management of the 

Benton Convention Center; and 

WHEREAS, Noble Investment Group, LLC acquired the Adam’s Mark Hotel and 

repositioned the property into two separate hotels—a Marriott and an Embassy Suites; and  

 WHEREAS, under the MOU, the City purchased for $10 million the 38,000 square feet 

of renovated meeting/support space in the lower level of the Embassy Suites, as well as the 

Grand Pavilion Ballroom (formerly Beneath The Elms); and 

WHEREAS, the City currently leases the meeting and ballroom space to Noble Winston-

Salem Associates West, LLC, the Embassy Suites owner, for $600,000 per year to cover the 

City’s annual debt payment from financing the purchase of the space; and 

WHEREAS, recently, Noble Investment Group, LLC has been in negotiations with 

Hospitality Ventures Management Group to sell the two hotels and transfer management of the 

Benton Convention Center; and 

WHEREAS, Hospitality Ventures Management Group was formed in 2001 and currently 

owns and/or operates 30 full-service, select service, and extended stay branded and independent 

properties and resorts in 14 states, including the Marriott Greensboro Airport Hotel, near 

Piedmont Triad International Airport; and 

-11-

G-3.      DRAFT



WHEREAS, City staff will prepare a separate action item for consideration and approval 

by the Public Assembly Facilities Commission to assign the management agreement for the 

Benton Convention Center to Hospitality Ventures Management Group; and 

WHEREAS, various lease agreements and estoppels necessary to effectuate the sale of 

the downtown Winston-Salem Marriott and Embassy Suites have been prepared and must be 

executed between the City and Hospitality Ventures Management Group after their finalization 

and approval by the City Attorney as to form and substance; and 

WHEREAS, the sale will necessitate the City’s consent to the assignment of the 

reciprocal easement agreement, which the City hereby consents to. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council upon the 

recommendation of the Finance Committee, do hereby approve the various lease agreements and 

estoppels, all in form and substance to be approved by the City Attorney. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Public Assembly Facilities Commission has 

considered and approved the assignment of the Convention Center Qualified Management 

Agreement to Hospitality Ventures Management Group, and the Mayor and City Council 

acknowledges the Commission’s approval of the assignment. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute all 

leases and agreements on behalf of the Mayor and City Council, and the Public Assembly 

Facilities Commission after their approval by the City Attorney. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall be effective on the date of its 

adoption. 

-12-

G-3.      DRAFT



 

 

 

 

TO: Mayor Joines and Members of the Finance Committee 

FROM: D. Ritchie Brooks, Director of C&BD 

DATE: April 25, 2016 

SUBJECT: 4640 Indiana Ave. Demolition Assessment 

CC: Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager 

Evan Raleigh, Deputy Director of C&BD 

 

The following information is provided in response to City Council’s request to remove 

the subject demolition assessment from its April 18, 2016 Consent Agenda and send it 

back to the Community Development/Housing/General Government Committee 

(CD/H/GG) for further staff investigation and Committee review.   

On January 31, 2013, a letter was sent to the property owner, George Richardson, at 

2505 Lewis St., Winston-Salem, NC 27107 informing him that the subject property 

would be considered for demolition by the CD/H/GG Committee at its March 19, 

2013 meeting.  The letter directed Mr. Richardson to arrange a meeting no later than 

February 25, 2013 if he “wished to be heard or to present any evidence concerning 

whether or not the referenced dwelling should be demolished” and advised that said 

meeting would provide him an opportunity to avoid the possibility of his property 

being demolished.   

On February 8, 2013, Mr. Richardson came to the Community and Business 

Development Office and spoke with Bruce Bailiff, at which time he advised there was 

a No Trespassing Sign placed on the property and advised that Inspector Brown was 

not to enter upon the property.  Mr. Bailiff explained the ordinance adoption and 

demolition process to Mr. Richardson, and informed him about the upcoming 

CD/H/GG Committee meeting. 

The case was presented to the CD/H/GG Committee in March, 19, 2013.  Mr. 

Richardson, was present at the meeting and stated that a lis pendens had been filed against 

the property before he purchased it in 2012 and that he intended to live in the dwelling once 

he had completed repairs.  Council Member Adams asked how much time it would take to 

repair the structure, and Mr. Richardson indicated it would take more than three months to 

repair it and requested an extension until November to complete the repairs.   Council 

Member Adams expressed concern about the safety of the structure, noting that neighbors 

grew weary of living near substandard properties.  Council Member Taylor asked if the 

structure was secure, and Mr. Bailiff explained the side of the house needed to be enclosed 

and doors and windows should be installed to secure the structure.  Mr. Richardson 

indicated he could cover the open portion of the structure within a week. Council Member 

Adams made a motion to allow Mr. Richardson 90 days to make improvements to the 

property and the motion was carried unanimously.  The extension was due to expire in June 

2013.   

No repairs were made on the property within the extension period granted.  A 

-13-

G-4.      DRAFT



2 

 

demolition ordinance was adopted on the property on June 17, 2013.  On July 10, 

2013, a letter was mailed to George Richardson at 2505 Lewis St, Winston-Salem, NC  

27107, notifying him that the property must be repaired or demolished within 90 days 

after June 17, 2013.  A copy of the demolition ordinance was sent with the letter, 

which also informed Mr. Richardson that he should remove all items of personal 

property from the dwelling within 15 days of the expiration of the 90-day demolition 

period. 

On June 4, 6, and 11, 2013, Mr. Bailiff called Mr. Richardson at the telephone number 

he provided in order to gain access to the property to determine if the violations had 

been bought into compliance, but was unable to make contact. On November 15, 

2013, from an adjoining property, a reinspection revealed that the structure was 

unsecure (the front door was open and allowed visibility through the house) and no 

work was completed.  Reinspections occurred on January 10, March 26, June 2, 

August 8, and December 1 of 2014, all of which showed no changes to the condition 

of the structure.   

Staff checked with the Inspections Department, and found that a permit for an addition 

to a single-family dwelling was issued March 3, 2013. The only inspection after the 

permit was obtained occurred on July 24, 2013.  As per Inspection’s procedure, the 

permit was closed July 29, 2014 due to no work having been done since the previous 

inspection.   

On December 9, 2014, Mr. Richardson was notified vial mail that since he had failed 

to repair or demolish the dwelling as prescribed by the demolition ordinance adopted 

by City Council, that he should remove any items of personal property from the 

dwelling within 15 days’ receipt of this notification and that the dwelling would then 

be demolished and the cost of the demolition would be placed against the property. 

Reinspections occurred on February 20, May 7, and July 27, 2015, all of which 

showed no changes to the condition of the structure.   

Mr. Richardson came into the office on September 23, 2015 and spoke with Mr. 

Bailiff advising that he had funding in place to begin repairs.  Mr. Bailiff advised he 

would need additional details about funding and when the repairs would be 

completed.  Mr. Richardson advised he would have the information no later than 

September 25, 2015. 

Mr. Richardson did not provide the requested information and the structure was 

demolished on November 19, 2015. 

Attached are copies of letters sent pertaining to the demolition process and photos of 

the structure during its inspection history. 

 

 

 

-14-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-15-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-16-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-17-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-18-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-19-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-20-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-21-

G-4.      DRAFT



  

-22-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-23-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-24-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-25-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-26-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-27-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-28-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-29-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-30-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-31-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-32-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-33-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-34-

G-4.      DRAFT



  

-35-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-36-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-37-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-38-

G-4.      DRAFT



-39-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-40-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-41-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-42-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-43-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-44-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-45-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-46-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-47-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-48-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-49-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-50-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-51-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



-52-

G
-5.      D

R
A

FT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 13, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: 
S. Kirk Bjorling, Real Estate Administrator 
Courtney Driver, Assistant to the City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

  
Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Acquisition of Property at 2619 Bethabara Road for 
New Park Construction (North Ward) 
 

Summary of Information:  
  
A search has been conducted for a new park location in the North Ward.  Two public meetings 
were held to solicit community feedback on park location and amenities.  Property has been 
identified at 2619 Bethabara Road that could serve as a new park in the North Ward.  The lot 
contains 3.96 acres and it is further identified as Tax PIN 6818-13-8670.  The tax value is 
$206,500.  The property is owned by LPT Development Company, Inc., 6221 Hackers Bend 
Court, Winston-Salem, North Carolina 27103.  The owner has agreed to a negotiated purchase 
price of $158,000. 
 
This acquisition would provide an opportunity for needed expansion of the park system into the 
North Ward.  The Recreation and Parks Director and Recreation and Parks Commission are 
supportive of the acquisition. 
  
The attached resolution authorizes the acquisition of property at 2619 Bethabara Road Tax PIN 
6818-13-8670 for $158,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-53-

C-1.      DRAFT



 

-54-



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AT 

 2619 BETHABARA ROAD FOR NEW PARK CONSTRUCTION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, a search has been conducted for a site for a new park in the North Ward; 

and 

 WHEREAS, property has been located which would serve this purpose at 2619 

Bethabara Road; and 

 WHEREAS, the lot contains 3.96 acres and it is further identified as Tax PIN 6818-13-

8670; and 

 WHEREAS, the property is owned by LPT Development Company, Inc., 6221 Hackers 

Bend Court, Winston-Salem, North Carolina 27103; and 

 WHEREAS, the owner has agreed to a negotiated purchase price of $158,000; and 

 WHEREAS, this acquisition would provide an opportunity for needed expansion of the 

park system into the North Ward; and 

 WHEREAS, the Recreation and Parks Director and Recreation and Parks Commission 

are supportive of the acquisition. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Winston-Salem hereby authorize acquisition of property at 2619 Bethabara Road, further 

identified as Tax PIN 6818-13-8670, from LPT Development Company, Inc. for the sum of 

$158,000 and that the appropriate City officials are authorized to take the necessary steps to 

effectuate the acquisition of the property, including a purchase contract, which shall be in a form 

approved by the City Attorney. 

-55-

C-1.      DRAFT



 

-56-



-57-

C-1.      DRAFT



 

-58-



 City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 13, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: S. Kirk Bjorling, Real Estate Administrator 

Council Action Requested:  
 
Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Sale of Certain City-owned Property at 426 West 
Clemmonsville Road Under the Upset Bid Procedure (N.C.G.S. 160A-269) (Southeast Ward) 
 

Summary of Information:  
 
The City owns a single-family lot and a house situated thereon identified as Tax PIN 6833-18-
8068 located at 426 West Clemmonsville Road. The lot is zoned residential, contains 
approximately 35,283.6 sq. ft., and the four room house contains 756 sq. ft. (living room, 
kitchen, two bedrooms, and one bath).  The property was acquired for the Clemmonsville Road 
widening project, which is now complete.  The tax value is $53,544 based on the exterior 
appearance, but the interior has been vandalized and stripped of metal.  It is in poor condition 
with many repairs needed.  For this reason, all reasonable offers were considered. 
 
Carmen Taveras and J. Eli Mojica Garcia, 1629 East Sprague Street, Winston-Salem, NC 27107 
have submitted an offer along with the required deposit to purchase the property.  The offer is 
$35,000.  The property is being purchased “As Is/Where Is and With All Faults”.  The buyer 
proposes to rehab the house and be an owner/occupant.  Staff believes that due to the poor 
condition of the house, this is a reasonable offer and the best offer that can be obtained.  If this 
vacant property is not disposed of it will continue to deteriorate further and at some point the 
City will have to pay for the demolition of the house and the future upkeep of the lot.  By selling 
this property, it will also be placed back on the tax rolls and greater revenue will be realized for 
the City.  For the reasons previously mentioned, Staff recommends that the City sell the property 
for $35,000. 
 
Under the provisions of N.C.G.S. 160A-269, the City Secretary shall cause a notice of proposed 
sale, containing a general description of the property, the amount and terms of the offer, and a  
 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 
 

-59-

C-2.      DRAFT



notice that within ten days any person may raise the bid by not less than 10% of the notice that 
within ten days any person may raise the bid by not less than 10% of the first $1,000 and 5% of 
the remainder, to be published, and without further authorization of the City 
Council, shall re-advertise the offer at the increased bid; and this procedure shall be repeated 
until no further qualifying bids are received, at which time the City Council may accept the offer 
and sell the property to the highest bidder or reject any and all offers.  In the event that no upset 
bid is received, the property will be sold to Carmen Taveras and J. Eli Mojica Garcia without 
further City Council action.  If raised bids are received, City Council confirmation is required. 
 
The attached resolution authorizes the sale of Tax PIN 6826-82-6818, known as 426 West 
Clemmonsville Road under the upset bid procedure to Carmen Taveras and J. Eli Mojica Garcia 
or their assigns as herein stated. 
 
 
 

-60-

C-2.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED PROPERTY 

AT 426 WEST CLEMMONSVILLE ROAD UNDER THE UPSET BID PROCEDURE             

(N.C.G.S. 160A-269) 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is the owner of a single family lot and house situated thereon 

located at 426 West Clemmonsville Road, further identified as Tax PIN 6833-18-8068, Forsyth 

County Tax Map, that is surplus to the City’s needs; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase such property and advertise it for 

upset bids all in accordance with N.C.G.S. 160A-269; and 

 WHEREAS, said offer in the amount of $35,000 was submitted by Carmen Taveras and 

J. Eli Mojica Garcia, 1629 East Sprague Street, Winston-Salem, NC 27107 and the required 5% 

deposit has been paid; and 

 WHEREAS, the property has been vandalized, stripped of metal, and is in poor 

condition with many repairs needed; and 

 WHEREAS, no warranty of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, or 

condition is made by the City relating to the sale of the property and the property is purchased 

“As Is/Where Is and With All Faults”. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council upon the 

recommendation of the Finance Committee, hereby authorize the sale for $35,000 of property 

herein referenced, as Tax Pin 6833-18-8068 to Carmen Taveras and J. Eli Mojica Garcia under 

the provisions of N.C.G.S. 160A-269; that the City Secretary shall cause a notice of  proposed 

sale, containing a general description of the property, amount and terms of the  offer, and a 

notice that within ten days any person may raise the bid by not less than 10% of the first $1,000 

and 5% of the remainder, be published, without further authorization of the Mayor and the City 

Council, shall re-advertise the offer at the increased bid; and this procedure shall be repeated 

-61-

C-2.      DRAFT



until no further qualifying bids are received, at which time the Mayor and the City Council may 

accept the offer and sell the property to the highest bidder or reject any and all offers. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, in the event that no raised bid is received, the offer set 

forth above is hereby accepted, and that the appropriate City officials are hereby authorized to 

execute instruments required to complete the conveyance to Carmen Taveras and J. Eli Mojica 

Garcia or their assigns as stated herein and if the sale is not completed, the bid deposit submitted 

with the offer may be returned to the offeror.    

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  the purchase of the property is voided and the refund 

of the earnest money or bid deposit is authorized if it is requested by the buyer within the due 

diligence period as specified in the Offer to Purchase Contract or the Bid Purchase of City 

Property Offer. 

-62-

C-2.      DRAFT



-63-

C-2.      DRAFT



 

-64-



 

City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: May 25, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Derwick L. Paige, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

 
Adopt Resolution Designating WPDA, Inc. as the Best Qualified Developer and Establishing A 
Public Hearing Date for Approval of the Public-Private Partnership Contract in accordance with 
G.S. 143-128.1C. 

Summary of Information:  
On March 28, 2016, City Council adopted a resolution finding there is a critical need: (i) for the 
City to acquire easements and rights-of-way for infrastructure (water, sewer and road) purposes 
and (ii) for City participation in enhancements to various buildings within the Whitaker Park 
Development project area utilizing its public-private partnership authority set forth in G.S. 143-
128.1C, all in an effort to spur economic development.   
 
As the next step in the process to enter into a public-private partnership for the development of 
Whitaker Park, the City issued a request for qualifications. Any private developer capable of 
undertaking the project was eligible to submit a proposal. The proposals then were evaluated 
based upon the private developer being in a position to: (i) acquire the necessary land in 
Whitaker Park for the development project, (ii) convey to the City the real estate interest 
(easements and rights-of-way) desired by the City for public infrastructure purposes; (iii) convey 
to the City a security interest in certain buildings as collateral for a City loan; (iv) undertake or 
cause to be completed the entire project as outlined in the resolution adopted on March 28, 2016, 
and the request for qualifications; (v) contribute at least fifty 50% of the financing for the total 
cost necessary to deliver the project; the value of the land contributed to the project by the 
developer may be considered as part of the developer’s contribution; and (vi) comply with the 
requirements set forth in G.S. 143-128.1C. 
 
Two proposals were received from the solicitation. One proposal was submitted by Whitaker 
Park Development Authority, Inc. (WPDA) which is a nonprofit corporation created for 
economic and redevelopment purposes with representatives from Winston-Salem Business Inc., 
Winston-Salem Alliance, Wake Forest University, Piedmont Triad Partnership, Forsyth County, 
City of Winston-Salem and other at-large representation. The other proposal was submitted by 
 Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-65-

C-3.      DRAFT



Samet Corporation and Stimmel Associates PA. While the latter proposal was competitive for 
several of the criteria, it failed to respond to how Samet had the ability: 1) to acquire, in fee 
simple, the property necessary for the public infrastructure improvements and to transfer title and 
ownership of the same to the City; 2) to acquire, in fee simple, the land and buildings necessary 
to complete the Whitaker Park Development project; or 3) to obtain and convey to the City the 
security interest in the 601 Buildings based upon a Developer Loan.  
 
As a result, the attached resolution designates WPDA, Inc. as the best qualified developer and 
authorizes, following a public hearing, the City to enter into a contract with WPDA, Inc., with 
terms and conditions that provide, amongst other things for: (i) the acquisition by the City of  
certain easements and rights-of-way for infrastructure (water, sewer and roads) that will become 
public infrastructure and additional land, later in the project, for open space/green space in 
Whitaker Park, (ii) a $2 million dollar loan with an interest rate of at least 3% but no more than 
5%, and (iii) installation, repair and upgrade of public infrastructure that is not reimbursed by the 
County, as further described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.    
 
The attached resolution also establishes a public hearing date of August 15, 2016 for the City 
Council to approve the contract between WPDA and the City of Winston-Salem. Per G.S. 143-
128.1C, notification and advertisement of the proposed terms of the contract must be published 
in a local general circulation newspaper at least 30 days prior to the public hearing date. 
 

-66-

C-3.      DRAFT



1 

 

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING WPDA, INC. AS THE BEST  

QUALIFIED DEVELOPER AND ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC HEARING  

DATE FOR APPROVAL OF THE PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP  

CONTRACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 143-128.1C 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 28, 2016, City Council adopted a resolution finding there is a 

critical need: (i) for the City to acquire easements and rights-of-way for infrastructure (water, 

sewer and road) purposes and (ii) for City participation in enhancements to various buildings 

within the Whitaker Park Development Project area utilizing its public-private partnership 

authority set forth in G.S. 143-128.1C, all in an effort to spur economic development; and 

WHEREAS, the City issued a request for qualifications for any private developer 

capable of undertaking the project to submit a proposal outlining their qualifications; and  

WHEREAS, proposals were evaluated based upon the private developer being in a 

position to: (i) acquire the necessary land in Whitaker Park for the development project, (ii) 

convey to the City the real estate interest (easements and rights-of-way) desired by the City for 

public infrastructure purposes; (iii) convey to the City a security interest in certain buildings as 

collateral for a City loan; (iv) undertake or cause to be completed the entire project as outlined in 

the resolution adopted on March 28, 2016, and the request for qualifications; (v) contribute at 

least fifty 50% of the financing for the total cost necessary to deliver the project; the value of the 

land contributed to the project by the developer may be considered as part of the developer’s 

contribution; and (vi) comply with the requirements set forth in G.S. 143-128.1C.; and 

WHEREAS, proposals were received and reviewed from Whitaker Park Development 

Authority, Inc. (WPDA) and Samet Corporation and Stimmel Associates PA; and 

   WHEREAS, based upon a review of these proposals, it is determined that WPDA is the 

best qualified developer for the Whitaker Park Development Project; and 

-67-

C-3.      DRAFT



2 

 

 WHEREAS, following a public hearing, the City may enter into a contract with WPDA, 

Inc., with terms and conditions that provide, amongst other things for: (i) the acquisition by the 

City of  certain easements and rights-of-way for infrastructure (water, sewer and roads) that will 

become public infrastructure and additional land, later in the project, for open space/green space 

in Whitaker Park, (ii) a $2 million dollar loan with an interest rate of at least 3% but no more 

than 5% and (iii) installation, repair and upgrade of public infrastructure that is not reimbursed 

by the County, as further described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein; and  

 WHEREAS, per G.S. 143-128.1C, notification and advertisement of the proposed terms 

of the contract must be published in a local general circulation newspaper at least 30 days prior 

to the public hearing date.  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council hereby 

designate WPDA, Inc. as the best qualified developer for the Whitaker Park Development 

Project. 

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED, that pursuant to G.S. 143-128.1C a public hearing date 

of August 15, 2016 is hereby established for the City Council to approve the contract between 

WPDA, Inc. and the City of Winston-Salem.  

 

-68-

C-3.      DRAFT



EXHIBIT A 

 
Terms and Conditions for Public-Private Partnership (P3) between 

Whitaker Park Development Authority, Inc. (WPDA) and the 
City of Winston-Salem 

 
1. Acquisition and Development of the Project Site 
 

a. WPDA shall become the fee simple owner of record of the 120 acre site within 
Whitaker Park (“Project Site”) on or before January 31, 2018. 

b. WPDA pursuant to this P3 Agreement shall convey, on or before June 30, 2018, all of 
the required easements, rights-of-way and other property interest that is necessary for 
the City to own the infrastructure designated as public infrastructure. Additionally, 
WPDA shall also convey green space and stormwater infrastructure to the City on or 
before June 30, 2018. Should WPDA fail to acquire the Project Site and convey the 
aforementioned infrastructure and property interest by the dates set forth herein, WPDA 
shall repay the City all city funds invested in the Project within ninety (90) days from 
receipt of a demand letter for repayment from the City.  

c. WPDA will engage architects and engineers as necessary to prepare plans and 
specifications necessary for the design, development and construction of the Project 
(the "Construction Plans"). All Construction Plans and any material change orders 
affecting the use and quality of the Project, where City funds are used, shall be 
subject to the prior review and approval of the Office of the City Manager, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  

d. WPDA will enter into a contract (the "GC Contract") with a general contractor (the 
"Contractor") for the construction of the Project that sets either a fixed price or a 
guaranteed maximum price. Said General Contractor shall be responsible for the 
construction of both the public infrastructure and the non-public portions of the Project. 
During the construction of the Project, City representatives shall be invited to 
construction progress meetings every month with WPDA, the Contractor and the 
architect.  
 
In general, the Contractor will conduct and oversee all of the work related to the public 
infrastructure and the renovations, equipment and fixture installations to Buildings 601-
1 and 601-11 within Whitaker Park (“601 Buildings”) as well as any additional 
buildings within Whitaker Park including the 605-1, 7 and 10-13 Buildings and the 2-1 
and 2-2 Buildings (“Additional Buildings”). The renovations regarding the 601 
Buildings include, but are not limited to: (i) separating and disconnecting the existing 
HVAC and related systems along with the steam system of the 601 Buildings from the 
building being retained by  Reynolds; (ii) disconnecting the central fire protection loop 
in the 601 Buildings from the building being retained by Reynolds and installing a new 
one in the 601 Buildings; (iii) separating the electrical system of the 601 Buildings from 
the building being retained by Reynolds and installing new transformers and related 
systems in the 601 Buildings; (iv) renovating the single tenant space in the 601 
Buildings into facilities that will accommodate multiple tenants; (v) repairing or 
replacing, as necessary, the roofs on the 601 Buildings and (vi) such additional work 
necessary to facilitate the occupancy of the 601 Buildings. 
 
  

-69-

C-3.      DRAFT



An additional aspect of the Project includes the conversion of the steam heating system 
in the Additional Buildings to a heating source that is more economical. The City shall 
not be responsible for any Project cost overruns unless additional funding is 
expressly agreed t o  by the Winston-Salem City Council in compliance with G.S 143-
128.1C. 

e. WPDA shall be responsible for the purchase of all materials and equipment at a 
reasonable cost. 

f. It is anticipated that the Project will be completed by January 1, 2020. In the event the 

Project is not completed by said date, the Developer agrees to make a non-confidential 

written report to the City at least thirty (30) days in advance of the projected January 1, 

2020 completion date to explain the delay and the revised construction schedule. Upon 

satisfactory completion of the Public Infrastructure, as determined by the City, the 

Developer shall deed said Public Infrastructure to the City, at no additional cost to the 

City.  

2. Project Financing Structure and Disbursement of City Funds 

a. Public Sources of Funding 

(i) Forsyth County (“County”) will provide funding for public infrastructure in an 
amount not to exceed $2.3 million.  

(ii) Provided WPDA owns the required fee simple interest in the Project Site by 
January 31, 2018, and is in a position to execute the required loan documents for 
the City loan, the City will provide a subordinate loan in an amount not to 
exceed $2 million. The loan documents shall include a promissory note, 
subordinate deed of trust and security agreement and UCC Financing 
Statement (“Loan Documents”) to be executed no later than June 30, 2018. 
In the event that WPDA does not own the 601 Buildings within the Project 
Site at the time the loan funds are needed, but there is need to undertake 
work related to the separation of systems within the Project Site and thus 
expend loan funds prior to January 31, 2018, the City will accept a 
temporary, subordinate deed of trust for the property located at 95 W. 32nd 
Street, Winston-Salem, NC  27105 (Building 630-2) within the Project Site.  
Said temporary subordinate deed of trust will be released upon the 
execution of a permanent deed of trust and other loan documents on the 601 
Buildings within the Project Site. The loan funds will be disbursed within 
thirty (30) days of execution of the Loan Documents. The loan, which shall 
bear an interest rate of no less than 3% but no greater than 5%, shall be 
repaid, in full, upon the sale of either of the 601 Buildings identified in the 
P3 Agreement. If the 601 Buildings are subject to a lease, Borrower shall 
provide the City with an agreed upon percentage of the lease payments after 
reasonable deductions for expenses including any maintenance reserve. 
Said lease payments shall be applied towards the loan and be used to reduce 
the outstanding balance. Unless paid sooner, the loan shall be repaid not 
later than 10 years from the date of execution of the Loan Documents. 

(iii) Provided WPDA owns the required fee simple interest in the Project Site by 
January 31, 2018 and is in a position to convey to the City the easements, 
rights-of-way and other desired property interest by June 30, 2018, the City 
shall purchase the easements and rights-of-way for public infrastructure and 

-70-

C-3.      DRAFT



green space in an amount not to exceed $1 million. Said funds will be 
disbursed at the closing for the acquisition of the easements, rights-of-way 
and other property interest desired by the City. 

(iv) The final $1 million of the City’s $4 million dollar contribution to the 
Project will be for installation of the public infrastructure that is not 
reimbursed by the County. This $1 million for installation of public 
infrastructure shall be disbursed to the Developer within thirty (30) days of 
the execution of this P3 Agreement. The City’s entire contribution to the 
project shall not exceed $4 million. 

 
b. Private Sources of Funding 

(i) WPDA has in current assets and cash more than $8.0 million to contribute to the 
project. WPDA will contribute said amount to the Project. 

(ii) When WPDA acquires the Project Site, it will have assets valued in excess of $30 
million. 

 
3. Other Provisions 

 
a. WPDA and its Contractor will be required to adhere to the good faith efforts to recruit 

and select minority and women businesses and small business entities as set forth in G.S. 
143-128.2, 143-128.4, 143-128.1C. 
 

b. WPDA will be required to adhere to the payment bond requirements set forth in G.S. 
143-128.1C. 

 
c. WPDA/General Contractor will be required to obtain and maintain Commercial General 

Liability Insurance. 
 

-71-

C-3.      DRAFT



 

-72-



 

 

 

 

TO: Mayor Allen Joines and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Stephen M. Hawryluk, City Manager’s Designee, Downtown Winston-

Salem Business Improvement District Advisory Committee 

DATE: 6/8/2016 

SUBJECT: 

CC: 

Oversight and Controls for the Downtown Winston-Salem Business 

Improvement District Services  

Lee D. Garrity, City Manager 

Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager 

 

There are several mechanisms for oversight for the Downtown Winston-Salem Business 

Improvement District and for the contract the City has with the Downtown Winston-Salem 

Partnership to provide these services. When the Downtown Winston-Salem Business 

Improvement District was created, the Mayor and City Council approved the creation of the 

Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District Advisory Committee. This committee 

is appointed by City Council upon recommendation from the Mayor and the duties and 

responsibilities of this committee include: 

1) Prepare the annual work plan. 

2) Recommend an annual budget to City Council. 

3) Provide financial, program, and staff oversight with regards to the Downtown Winston-Salem 

Business Improvement District. 

The Committee is comprised of eleven members representing various stakeholder interests within 

downtown and meets at least once per quarter. The attached ordinance includes an amendment to 

the city code designating the Budget and Evaluation Office as the secretary and staff support to 

the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District Advisory Committee. 

 

The contract between the City of Winston-Salem and the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership 

for providing services within the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District also 

includes mechanisms for oversight and controls. The City may, without cause, and in its 

discretion, terminate the contract for convenience by giving the Downtown Winston-Salem 

Partnership a written notice at least 120 days. The contract also includes reporting requirements 

for the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership. Each quarter, a report shall be submitted to the 

City that includes a detailed description of the services performed within the district, updated 

performance measures, and expenditure spending history. This information is included in a 

quarterly memo that is provided to the Mayor and City Council. The Downtown Winston-Salem 

Partnership is also required to prepare an annual report of all program activities and 

accomplishments, and have an annual audit completed and submitted to the City, after the close 

of the fiscal year. 

 

The final mechanism for oversight of the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement 

District is the annual budget. The tax rate, budget, and work plan of the Downtown Winston-

Salem Business Improvement District are approved by the Mayor and City Council as part of the 

annual budget process. Any contract for services is contingent on the availability and final 

approval of these funds. 

 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 

747-7093. 

-73-

C-4.      DRAFT



 

-74-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 1, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

Consideration of Items Relating to the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement 

District 
 

a) Resolution Awarding a Contract with the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership to 

Provide Services Within the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District. 
 

b) Ordinance Amending Chapter 2 of the Winston-Salem City Code relating to 

Administration (Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District Advisory 

Committee) 

Summary of Information:  

 

Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 160A-536, a public input session was held on 

Wednesday, March 23, 2016 at the M.C. Benton, Jr. Convention & Civic Center. An SOQ/LOI 

was advertised on April 8, 2016 with proposals due on April 29, 2016. The City received one 

proposal, from the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership. A team of City staff from the City 

Manager’s Office, the Community and Business Development Department, and the Budget and 

Evaluation Office evaluated and scored the proposal. The Downtown Winston-Salem 

Partnership’s proposal received an average score of 94.3 out of a possible total of 100 points.  

 

A public hearing was held on June 6, 2016 to receive citizen input prior to entering into a 

contract with the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership (DWSP), the agency selected via a 

statement of qualifications/letter of interest (SOQ/LOI) process to provide services within the 

Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District. 

 

It is recommended that the City enter into a contract period of five years with the DWSP for 

services within the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District. The Downtown 

Winston-Salem Business Improvement District Advisory Committee was briefed on the 

proposal, scoring, and recommendation at its May 24, 2016 meeting.  

 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-75-

C-4.      DRAFT



Due to the new legislative requirements found in North Carolina General Statute 160A-536 

relating to the awarding and renewal of contracts for business improvement district services, a 

new agency could be awarded the contract for services in future years. Currently, the Downtown 

Winston-Salem Business Improvement District Advisory Committee receives staff support from 

the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership. The proposed ordinance amending the City Code 

changes the staff support for the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District 

Advisory Committee to the Budget and Evaluation Office. 

-76-

C-4.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

AWARDING A CONTRACT WITH THE DOWNTOWN WINSTON-SALEM 

PARTNERSHIP TO PROVIDE SERVICES WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN WINSTON-

SALEM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 160A-536, a public input 

session was held on Wednesday, March 23, 2016 at the M.C. Benton, Jr. Convention & Civic 

Center and a Statement of Qualifications/Letter of Interest was advertised on April 8, 2016 with 

proposals due on April 29, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City received one proposal, from the Downtown Winston-Salem 

Partnership, and a team of City staff from the City Manager’s Office, the Community and 

Business Development Department, and the Budget and Evaluation Office evaluated and scored 

the proposal and the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership’s proposal received an average of 

94.3 out of a possible total of 100 points; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on June 6, 2016 to receive citizen input prior to 

renewing or entering into a contract with an agency to provide services within the Downtown 

Winston-Salem Business Improvement District; and 

  

 WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the City enter into a contract period of five 

years with the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership to provide services within the Downtown 

Winston-Salem Business Improvement District. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council that the 

contract for providing services within the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement 

District be awarded to the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute 

the aforementioned contract, after review by the City Attorney, with the Downtown Winston-

Salem Partnership. 

 

-77-

C-4.a.      DRAFT



 

-78-



ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 OF THE CITY CODE ENTITLED 

“ADMINISTRATION” 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Sec. 2-175. Officers. is hereby amended to read as follows 

 

 The Mayor shall designate the initial chairperson of the Downtown Winston-Salem 

Business Improvement District Advisory Committee, who shall serve one year. Thereafter, the 

committee shall elect its own chairperson each to serve one year. The committee shall also elect 

from its number a vice-chairperson who shall serve as chairperson in the chairperson’s absence. 

The president of the Downtown Winston-Salem Partnership shall serve as secretary to the 

committee, not as a member of the advisory committee. The chairperson and vice-chairperson 

shall serve one-year terms. Both are eligible to serve multiple one-year terms as long as they are 

members of the committee. The budget and evaluation office shall serve as secretary to the 

committee and provide staff support and meeting place to the committee as needed. 

 

 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be effective upon the date of adoption. 

 

-79-

C-4.b.      DRAFT



 

-80-



 
 

 
 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 

FROM: D. Ritchie Brooks, Community and Business Development 
Department Director 

DATE: May 26, 2016 

SUBJECT: Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing Additional Funds 

CC: Lee Garrity, City Manager 
Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager 

 
 
The Finance Committee considered a request for $236,000 in additional HOME funds 
for Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing, a multifamily rental development located at 5180 
Peters Creek Parkway, at its meeting on May 9, 2016.  The following are responses to 
Council Member questions. 
 
Options for Buried Material – See separate memo from City Attorney Angela 
Carmon. 
 
Environmental Review – All projects using federal funds are required to pass an 
environmental review.  For large-scale new construction projects, this is an 
Environmental Assessment with receipt of a Release of Funds from the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  The developer contracted 
with an environmental consulting firm to complete a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment (ESA) in accordance with the Standard Practice for Environmental Site 
Assessments of the American Society for Testing and Materials.  In doing the ESA, the 
consultant observed the property and reviewed records related to the property, but did 
not do soil borings.  The ESA found no environmental conditions that would indicate 
the buried debris found by the developer.  Staff in the City/County Planning Board 
reviewed the ESA, consulted with other City departments and federal and state 
agencies, published its finding that the project would have no significant impact on the 
environment, and received a Release of Funds from HUD.   
 
Affordability Period – The primary source of funding for Rockwood at Oliver’s 
Crossing is Low Income Housing Tax Credits.  Under Tax Credit requirements, all 64 
units must be affordable for a 30-year period.  Thirty-one (31) units will be affordable 
to households earning at or below 60% of area median income (AMI), 17 units will be 
affordable to households earning at or below 50% AMI, and 16 units will be affordable 
to household earning at or below 30% AMI.   
 
The HOME program requires that newly constructed HOME-assisted units are 
affordable for a 20-year period.  HUD will monitor the City for compliance with all 
HOME regulations during the affordability period, and if the units do not comply the 
City will have to repay the HOME funds.  The agreement provides for eight HOME-
assisted units, four two-bedroom units and four three-bedroom units.  Tenants must be 
at or below 60% AMI, of which two units must be affordable to households at or below 
50% AMI.  If additional funds are approved, the number of HOME-assisted units will 

-81-

C-5.      DRAFT



2 
 

be increased to nine. 
 
Rents – Both the Tax Credit and HOME programs restrict the rents that can be 
charged.  The following are contract rents. (HOME contract rents take the maximum 
HOME program rent and subtract a utility allowance of $135 for a two-bedroom unit 
and $162 for a three-bedroom unit.) 
 

 2-Bedroom 3-Bedroom 

Tax Credit – 60% 611 698 

Tax Credit – 50% 535 611 

Tax Credit – 30% 267 302 

HOME – 60% 543 816 

HOME – 50% 543 644 

 
 
HOME Funds – HOME funds are available to meet this request and will be added to 
the existing loan.  The City’s loan is currently in second lien position behind a 
construction loan and will be subordinate to bank permanent financing.   
 
Payments from the HOME funds must be repaid to the HOME account for use in other 
HOME-assisted projects that meet all of the HOME requirements.  The funds will also 
contribute towards the City meeting HUD’s June 30th expenditure deadline for HOME 
funds.  Any shortfall in expenditures will be recaptured by HUD. 
 
 

 
 
 

-82-

C-5.      DRAFT



 
 

BTM:636104v1  
 

TO: Finance Committee Members 

FROM: Angela I. Carmon, City Attorney 

DATE: June 1, 2016 

SUBJECT: Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing 

CC: Lee Garrity, City Manager 
 

 
During the Finance Committee’s discussion of Item G-3 Resolution Authorizing 

Up to $236,000 in Additional Permanent Financing for the Development of 64 Units of 
Rental Housing for Families to be Known as Rockwood Oliver’s Crossing Apartments, 
questions arose regarding the debris such as tires, parts and other items  (“tires and auto 
parts”) buried beneath the surface of the soil of the property located at 5180 Peters Creek 
Parkway (“Subject Property”) and the applicable City Code revisions prohibiting such 
activity.  

 
City Code Section 62-7 “Depositing or burying offensive matter” makes it 

unlawful for any “…person to…..bury beneath the surface of the soil, or for the property 
owner to allow to remain on his property, within the city limits, any dead animal carcass, 
human body or part thereof, carrion, offal, human excrement, filth, manure, putrid or 
decaying animal matter, or other substance or matter offensive to the smell or injurious to 
health; provided that nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent the property 
burial of dead persons as provided in chapter 14 nor the use of manure on the surface as 
fertilizer.” It is my understanding that the bulk of the materials buried beneath the surface 
of the soil would not have been covered by this particular code provision.  However, 
North Carolina law makes it unlawful to discard, deposit or dispose of a scrap tire except 
at a site or facility permitted to receive scrap tires. Chapter 130A, Part 2B regarding scrap 
tires states that “This Part preempts any local ordinance regarding the disposal of scrap 
tires to the extent the local ordinance is inconsistent with this Part or the rules adopted 
pursuant to this Part”. 

 
Because the tires and auto parts were buried well beneath the surface of the soil, 

such parts were not discovered during the initial environmental testing phase. The same 
was discovered only after the grading commenced. Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing LLC 
(“Rockwood”) discussed the matter with its predecessor in title Virginia Hill, who 
appeared to be unaware of the tires and auto parts buried beneath the surface when she 
conveyed the property to Rockwood on April 25, 2014. Apparently, Rockwood contacted 
various entities at the time for financial assistance. However, due to time constraints on 
the project, Rockwood proceeded to remove, at its costs, the tires and auto parts.  

 
Rockwood did institute a lawsuit against Ms. Hill. Said lawsuit settled for 

$40,000, well below the removal cost which exceeded $280,000, due to several factors: 
(i) it was difficult to attribute knowledge of the tires and auto parts to Ms. Hill, who 
owned the property, but never lived or conducted any business there, (ii) Rockwood did 
not have privity of contract with the son, whom operated a used car business on the 
property, and whom Rockwood believed to be responsible for burying the tires and auto 

-83-

C-5.      DRAFT



2 
 

BTM:636104v1  

parts beneath the surface of the Subject Property, (iii) the strongest claim, which would 
have been for fraudulent concealment, had significant legal hurdles under North Carolina 
Real Property Law, and (iv) at the day long mediation, it appeared very clear that the 
Hills would not be able to respond in damages, even if a judgment was obtained for the 
full cost of cleanup. The settlement award was applied towards the removal costs.  

 
Following the Committee’s discussion, I did reach out to Peter Juran, the attorney 

that represented Rockwood in the aforementioned lawsuit and NC DENR. At this time, it 
does not appear that there are any alternative funding sources that Rockwood could avail 
itself of to minimize the financial impact of the cost associated with removal of the tires 
and auto parts from the Subject Property.  
 

Should you have any additional questions, please do not hesitate to let me know.  
 

-84-

C-5.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: April 25, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: D. Ritchie Brooks, Director, Community and Business Development 

Council Action Requested: 

Authorization of up to $236,000 in additional permanent financing for development of 64 units 
of rental housing for families, to be known as Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing Apartments (South 
Ward). 

Summary of Information:  
On April 15, 2013, the Mayor and City Council approved up to $550,000 for Rockwood at 
Oliver’s Crossing, to be derived from the HOME funds and Housing Finance Assistance Funds.  
On April 21, 2014, the Mayor and City Council approved an additional $100,000 in HOME 
funds to cover cost overruns based largely on additional site costs required to develop the 
property and meet all City and Department of Transportation design standards.  These included 
additional retaining walls, boring under Peters Creek Parkway to bring water and sewer to the 
property, and installing a turn lane.  Construction of the project, located at 5180 Peters Creek 
Parkway and consisting of 64 rental units for families, is now complete and fully leased. 
 
The developer, Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing, LLC, its affiliates or assigns, which Majority 
Managing Member is Bradley Queener and Minority Managing Member is Traci Dusenbury, has 
requested an additional $236,000 to address unforeseen costs, namely burial of debris that was 
undetected prior to start of the project and replacement of soil.  The total project cost is $9.1 
million, compared to $8.1 million originally.  The developer is responsible for the remaining 
costs. 
 
A resolution and project budget ordinance providing an additional $236,000 in HOME funds, 
which would bring the total HOME funds to $736,000 and the total loan to $886,000, is 
presented for consideration.  The total loan is an amortizing loan from cash flow at 2% annual 
interest for 20 years. Of the existing loan funds, 9% have been disbursed, and 10% will be 
disbursed once the developer has complied with HOME and North Carolina Housing Finance 
Agency’s requirements.   

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-85-

C-5.      DRAFT



The development consists of 32 two-bedroom and 32 three-bedroom units, and serves families 
with incomes below 60% of area median income, with 33 of the units targeted to households 
with incomes below 50% of area median income.  Amenities include a community room with 
kitchen, computer center with high-speed internet, laundry room, playground, tot lot, gazebo, and 
picnic area with grill.  In addition to the City’s funds, project funding includes $5.2 million in 
federal tax credits, a $1.65 million bank loan, a $680,000 state tax credit loan, $396,000 in owner 
investment, and $340,000 in deferred developer fees. 
 

-86-

C-5.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL PERMANENT FINANCING 

FOR A 64-UNIT FAMILY RENTAL DEVELOPMENT 

KNOWN AS ROCKWOOD AT OLIVER’S CROSSING 

 
 

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2013 the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-

Salem approved $550,000 in permanent financing to Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing, LLC, its 

affiliates or assigns, as the borrowing entity, and Bradley Queener, as Majority Managing 

Member, and Traci Dusenbury, as Minority Managing Members, to develop a 64-unit family 

rental development at 5180 Peters Creek Parkway, to be known as Rockwood at Oliver’s 

Crossing; and 

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2014, the Mayor and City Council approved an additional 

$100,000 in HOME funds for the project to cover cost overruns; and 

WHEREAS, the developers have requested additional funds to cover cost overruns, 

including burial of debris that was undetected at prior to the start of the project and replacement 

of soil. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Winston-Salem authorize up to $236,000 in additional permanent financing for 

Rockwood at Oliver’s Crossing to be added to the loan previously approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council authorize the City 

Manager to review and approve final loan terms and conditions, negotiate permanent loan 

agreements, and execute contracts and documents necessary to carry out the activities herein 

authorized. 

 

-87-

C-5.      DRAFT



 

-88-



 

 

City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: May 27, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Thomas Kureczka, Chief Information Officer 

Council Action Requested: 

  
Consideration of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Data Network Solutions, Inc. for Computer 
Storage Equipment. 

Summary of Information:  
  
The Information Systems Department manages a computer storage network composed of a large quantity 
of disk drives within the City’s two data centers.  Each data center has two storage controllers used to 
manage the communications between the disk drives and the computer applications servers.  The servers 
and storage network combined support the City’s enterprise and departmental business applications.  The 
controllers are also used by staff to administer the disk space allocations.     
 
These storage controllers are in the fifth year of service, and some of the disk drives are at end of life with 
no vendor support.  With the rapid changes in technology, replacement of the controllers and disk drives 
is needed to remain consistent with the technology used in the newer servers.  The FY15-16 maintenance 
and support contract for the controllers and disk drives cost $112,821.  With age being a factor, the cost 
for the maintenance and support contract for FY16-17 will be $134,000.  In less than three years, the total 
support cost for the existing equipment will be greater than an actual replacement with new equipment 
and three years of warranty and support. 
 
The Information Systems Department worked with Purchasing to issue a Request for Quote (RFQ) for the 
replacement of the controllers and drives with new equipment.  The RFQ stated that the new equipment 
must integrate with our servers and be certified by the manufacturer, Network Appliance.  Network 
Appliance requires that all equipment must be new for the warranty to apply and for them to support the 
devices.  Therefore, there was also a requirement in the RFQ that all vendor responses must represent new 
certified equipment, with no used or refurbished equipment.  An additional requirement was that all 
responses must include three years of support.   
 

 
 
Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-89-

C-6.a.      DRAFT



 

 

The City received only one response to the RFQ.  This vendor is not a local or M/WBE certified provider, 
but they do have a strong presence in the Triad area. 
 
The responding vendor and their pricing information is as follows: 

 

 

Vendor Price 

Data Network Solutions, Inc. $309,754.00 

 

 
The total one-time cost is $309,754.00.  Data Network Solutions, Inc. provides the City’s current support, 
as a Network Appliance partner, with very satisfying results, and their familiarity with the City’s 
environment will prove valuable with the migration to the new equipment.  Funding is available in the 
proposed FY16-17 Information Systems capital projects budget.  It is recommended that the City enter 
into an agreement with Data Network Solutions, Inc. for the purchase of computer storage controllers, 
disk drives, and three years of warranty and support, contingent upon approval of the FY16-17 budget by 
the City Council.    
 

Exhibit A includes workforce demographics for Data Network Solutions, Inc. 

-90-

C-6.a.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH DATA NETWORK SOLUTIONS, 

INC. FOR COMPUTER STORAGE EQUIPMENT 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Information Systems Department manages a computer storage network 

composed of controllers and disk drives within two data centers to support the City’s enterprise 

and departmental business applications; and 

WHEREAS, the controllers are in the fifth year of service, and some of the disk drives 

are at end of life with no vendor support; an upgrade is needed to remain consistent with the 

technology used in our computer application servers; and 

WHEREAS, in less than three years the total support cost for the existing equipment will 

be greater than an actual replacement with new equipment and three years of warranty and 

support; and  

 WHEREAS, a Request for Quote was issued for the replacement of the controllers and 

drives with new equipment and support, with only one vendor, Data Network Solutions, Inc., 

responding; and 

 WHEREAS, funding is available in the proposed FY16-17 Information Systems capital 

projects budget, contingent upon approval by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City enter into an agreement with Data Network 

Solutions, Inc. for the purchase of computer storage equipment. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council authorize 

the City Manager to enter into a contract with Data Network Solutions Inc. for computer storage 

equipment for a one-time amount of $309,754.   

     BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute 

the contract on behalf of the City. 

-91-

C-6.a.      DRAFT



 

-92-



           Exhibit A 

 

 

Project/Bid/ Description:  Contract for Computer Storage Equipment 

Bidder’s Company Name:  Data Network Solutions, Inc.  

City/State:  Chapin, SC 

 

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS 
 

 Gender  Race/Ethnic Identification 

           

  

 

Male 

 

 

Female 

  

 

White 

 

African-

American 

 

 

Hispanic 

 

 

Asian 

 

Native-

American 

Two or 

More  

Races 

 

 

Total 

 26 7  31 1 1    33 

% of 

Total 

 

79% 

 

21% 

  

94% 

 

3% 

 

3% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company’s efforts to achieve diversity 

in the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this 

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid 

contract. 

-93-

C-6.a.      DRAFT



 

-94-



 

City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for Ditch Maintenance. 

Summary of Information: 
 
The Department of Transportation Streets Division has periodic needs to provide ditch 
maintenance across the City.  The scope of work normally involves cleaning of drainage ditches 
and pipes, reshaping drainage ditches, cutting new shoulders, seeding and mulching, and 
occasionally, pipe replacement under driveways.  Bids based on historical usage and projected 
needs with a significant inflation factor for quantities were accepted on May 20, 2016. Below is a 
summary of the only bid offered with the itemized summary of this bid shown on Exhibit B 
following the resolution: 
 
 City/State Sum of Unit Prices  
 Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc. Browns Summit, NC  $361,250 
   
This annual contract runs from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.  Terms of the bid allow the City the 
right to extend the contract for as many as two additional annual periods (until June 30, 2019), if 
both parties agree and funds are made available for that purpose.  Unit prices may be adjusted at 
the beginning of each additional annual period by an amount not to exceed the latest available 
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers. 
 
The City’s annual budget includes $90,000 for these services; therefore, it is recommended that a 
contract for ditch maintenance be awarded to Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc., the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder meeting specifications, in the estimated annual total amount of 
$90,000 and the right to extend the contract for as many as two additional annual periods (until 
June 30, 2019), if both parties agree and funds are made available for that purpose making the 
total award possible over three years is the estimated amount of $270,000. 
 
M/WBE comment: Notices were sent to 30 local area landscapers and site contractors, including 
nine minority and seven woman-owned businesses, who perform this type of work.  No M/WBE 
businesses responded to this opportunity. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 

Committee Action:   

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

-95-

C-6.b.      DRAFT



 

-96-



 RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR DITCH MAINTENANCE 

 

 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 3:00 p.m. on Friday, May 20, 2016, for ditch 

maintenance as needed during the annual period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017; and 

the following bid was received: 

 City/State Sum of Unit Prices  
 Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc. Browns Summit, NC  $361,250 

 

WHEREAS, terms of the bid allow the City the right to extend the contract for as many 

as two additional annual periods (until June 30, 2019), if both parties agree and funds are made 

available for that purpose, and unit prices may be adjusted at the beginning of each additional 

annual period by an amount not to exceed the latest available Consumer Price Index for All 

Urban Consumers; and 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded for ditch maintenance as needed during the annual period from July 1, 2016, through 

June 30, 2017, to Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc., the lowest responsive bidder meeting 

specifications, in the estimated annual amount of $90,000 with the option to extend for two 

additional annual periods (until June 30, 2019), if both parties agree and funds are made 

available for that purpose, making the total award possible over three years in the estimated 

amount of $270,000. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that the 

contract for ditch maintenance is hereby awarded to Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc., in the 

estimated amount of $90,000 with the option to extend for two additional annual periods (until 

June 30, 2019), if both parties agree and funds are made available for that purpose, making the 

total award possible over three years in the estimated amount of $270,000 and that the City 

-97-

C-6.b.      DRAFT



Manager and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the City, 

contract forms to be approved by the City Attorney. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City.   

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2016-

17 budget and available in account no. 56-5630-5272 to cover the cost of this contract. 

  

-98-

C-6.b.      DRAFT



Exhibit B 

 

  Carolina Asphalt Paving 

Item Description Qty Unit unit cost subtotal 

Ditching (cleaning & reshaping) 7,500 LF $15.00 $112,500 

Ditching (cleaning, reshaping, cutting shoulders) 7,500 LF $22.50 $168,750 

Cutting Shoulders (0'-4' wide) 5,000 LF $10.00 $50,000 

Pipe Installation <24" dia. 100 EA $50.00 $5,000 

Pipe Cleaning 1,000 EA $25.00 $25,000 

TOTAL EST. COST  
   

$361,250 

 

 

-99-

C-6.b.      DRAFT



 

-100-



Exhibit B

Item 

#
Item Description Qty Unit unit cost subtotal

1 Ditching (cleaning & reshaping) 7,500 LF $15.00 $112,500

2
Ditching (cleaning, reshaping, 

cutting shoulders)
7,500 LF $22.50 $168,750

3 Cutting Shoulders (0'-4' wide) 5,000 LF $10.00 $50,000

4 Pipe Installation <24" dia. 100 EA $50.00 $5,000

5 Pipe Cleaning 1,000 EA $25.00 $25,000

Total Estimated Cost $361,250

DITCH MAINTENANCE 

Carolina Asphalt Paving

Bid Tabulation
Bid Opening 3:00 pm, May 20, 2016

-101-

C-6.b.      DRAFT



 

-102-



Exhibit A

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

3 1 4 0 0 0 0 4

% of 

Total 75.0% 25.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Ditch Maintenance

Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc.

Brown Summit, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-103-

C-6.b.      DRAFT



 

-104-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of a Resolution Awarding Contract for Structure Adjustments. 

Summary of Information: 
 
The Department of Transportation Streets Division has periodic needs to provide structure 
adjustments as needed on City streets.  The scope of work may involve raising manholes, water 
valves, or inlet grates during street resurfacing.  Bids for an annual service contract based on 
historical usage and projected needs with a significant inflation factor for quantities were 
accepted on May 24, 2016.  Below is a summary of the bids received with the itemized summary 
of this bid shown on Exhibit B following the resolution: 
 
 City/State Sum of Unit Prices  
 Ascent Construction Solutions, LLC Winston-Salem, NC $149,875.00 
 Cooper Construction Service, LLC Winston-Salem, NC 236,250.00 
 Mayes Landscaping & Concrete, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC 255,993.75 
 
This annual contract runs from July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017.  Terms of the bid allow the City 
the right to extend the contract for as many as two additional annual periods (until June 30, 
2019), if both parties agree and funds are made available for that purpose.  Unit prices may be 
adjusted at the beginning of each additional annual period by an amount not to exceed the latest 
available Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers. 
 
The City’s annual budget includes $100,000 for these services; therefore it is recommended that a 
contract to provide structure adjustments on City streets be awarded to Ascent Construction 
Solutions, LLC, the lowest responsive, responsible bidder meeting specifications, in the 
estimated annual total amount of $100,000 and the right to extend the contract for as many as two 
additional annual periods (until June 30, 2019), if both parties agree and funds are made available 
for that purpose making the total award possible over three years is the estimated amount of 
$300,000. 
 
M/WBE comment: Notices were sent to 15 local area contractors, including five minority and 
three woman-owned businesses, who perform this type of work.  Ascent Construction Solutions, 
LLC and Mayes Landscaping & Concrete, Inc. are minority-owned businesses. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 

Committee Action:   

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

-105-

C-6.c.      DRAFT



 

-106-

C-6.c.      DRAFT



 RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR STRUCTURE ADJUSTMENTS 

 

 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 3:00 P.M. on Tuesday, May 24, 2016, for structure 

adjustments as needed during the annual period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017; and the 

following bids were received: 

 City/State Sum of Unit Prices  
 Ascent Construction Solutions, LLC Winston-Salem, NC $149,875.00 
 Cooper Construction Service, LLC Winston-Salem, NC 236,250.00 
 Mayes Landscaping & Concrete, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC 255,993.75 
 

WHEREAS, terms of the bid allow the City the right to extend the contract for as many 

as two additional annual periods (until June 30, 2019), if both parties agree and funds are made 

available for that purpose, and unit prices may be adjusted at the beginning of each additional 

annual period by an amount not to exceed the latest available Consumer Price Index for All 

Urban Consumers; and 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded for structure adjustments as needed during the annual period from July 1, 2016, through 

June 30, 2017, to Ascent Construction Solutions, LLC, the lowest responsive bidder meeting 

specifications, in the estimated annual amount of $100,000 with the option to extend for two 

additional annual periods (until June 30, 2019), if both parties agree and funds are made 

available for that purpose, making the total award possible over three years in the estimated 

amount of $300,000. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem, that the contract for structure adjustments is hereby awarded to Ascent 

Construction Solutions, LLC, in the estimated amount of $100,000 and that the City Manager 

and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the City, contract 

forms to be approved by the City Attorney. 

-107-

C-6.c.      DRAFT



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City.   

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2016-

17 budget and available in account no. 014620-5272-9999 to cover the cost of this contract. 

-108-

C-6.c.      DRAFT



Exhibit A

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

10 1 0 9 2 0 0 11

% of 

Total 90.9% 9.1% 0.0% 81.8% 18.2% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Structure Adjustments

Ascent Construction Solutions, LLC

Winston-Salem, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-109-

C-6.c.      DRAFT



 

-110-



Exhibit B

Item Item Description Qty Unit unit cost subtotal unit cost subtotal unit cost subtotal

1 Adjust Water Valve Boxes 400 EA $145.00 $58,000 $200.00 $80,000 $249.75 $99,900

2 Adjust Manholes 600 EA $145.00 $87,000 $250.00 $150,000 $249.75 $149,850

3 Inlet Grates 25 LF $195.00 $4,875 $250.00 $6,250 $249.75 $6,243.75

Total Estimated Cost $149,875 $236,250 $255,993.75

STRUCTURE ADJUSTMENTS SERVICE CONTRACT

Bid Opening 2:00 pm, May 24, 2016
Bid Tabulation

Ascent Construction 

Solutions, LLC

Cooper Construction 

Co.

Mayes Landscaping & 

Concrete, Inc.

-111-

C-6.c.      DRAFT



 

-112-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for Sidewalk Construction along Old Town Drive. 
(Northwest Ward) 

Summary of Information: 
 
Bids were received May 24, 2016, for sidewalk construction along Old Town Drive.  This project 
will install a new sidewalk to connect two segments of the Bethabara Greenway and provide a 
safer public access along Old Town Drive.  The scope of work also involves asphalt paving and 
construction of reinforced concrete end walls at the stream crossing.  Below is a summary of the 
bids accepted: 
 
 City/State Total Bid  
 Dalton Contracting, LLC Winston-Salem, NC  $122,789 
 Yates Construction Co., Inc. Stokesdale, NC  143,290 
 D.E. Walker Construction Co. Charlotte, NC  143,614 
 Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc. Browns Summit, NC  238,760 
 
It is recommended that a contract for sidewalk construction along Old Town Drive be awarded to 
Dalton Contracting, LLC, the low bidder meeting specifications, in the estimated total amount of 
$122,789.  The engineer’s estimate was $116,716. 
 
M/WBE comment: Notices were sent to 45 contractors who perform concrete and grading work, 
including 16 minority-owned and 7 woman-owned businesses.  D.E. Walker Construction Co. is 
a minority-owned business. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 
 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-113-

C-6.d.      DRAFT



 

-114-



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR 
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION ALONG OLD TOWN DRIVE 

 
 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 24, 2016, for sidewalk 

construction along Old Town Drive and the following bids were received: 

 City/State Total Bid  
 Dalton Contracting, LLC Winston-Salem, NC  $122,789 
 Yates Construction Co., Inc. Stokesdale, NC  143,290 
 D.E. Walker Construction Co. Charlotte, NC  143,614 
 Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc. Browns Summit, NC  238,760 
  
 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded to Dalton Contracting, LLC, the low bidder meeting specifications, for sidewalk 

construction along Old Town Drive in the estimated total amount of $122,789. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem that the contract for sidewalk construction along Old Town Drive is hereby 

awarded to Dalton Contracting, LLC in the estimated total amount of $122,789.  The City 

Manager and City Secretary are authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the City, with 

contract and performance and payment bonds to be approved by the City Attorney. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualifications of the bidder. The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds have been previously appropriated and will 

be made available in account nos. 304-533102-541206 and 8131-533102-661004 to cover the 

cost of this contract. 

-115-

C-6.d.      DRAFT



 

-116-



Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

American Total

7 0 4 1 2 0 0 7

% of 

Total 100.0% 0.0% 57.1% 14.3% 28.6% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in 

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

Exhibit A

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Construction of Old Town Drive Project

Dalton Contracting, LLC

Clemmons, North Carolina

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-117-

C-6.d.      DRAFT



 

-118-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for Concrete Base Streets Rehabilitation. 

Summary of Information: 
The City has several streets that were built with concrete having substandard curbs and gutters.  
Subsequent resurfacing with asphalt has left them with inadequate gutters to drain stormwater 
and the thin layer of surface asphalt is continually eroding.  This project will rehabilitate 11 
segments of five streets listed on Exhibit A. 
 
Bids were scheduled to be received May 18, 2016, for the concrete base streets rehabilitation 
project and on May 6, 2016, staff held a mandatory pre-bid conference to discuss the City’s 
Minority and Women Business Enterprise Program and the scope of work as it relates to the 
project.  Only one contractor attended the required meeting. North Carolina General Statute 
(N.C.G.S.) bidding laws state that only those attending the mandatory pre-bid meeting are 
eligible to offer a bid for the project and considering N.C.G.S.143-132(a) requires a minimum of 
three bids for formal construction and repair contracts, as authorized by N.C.G.S. 143-129, a 
second mandatory meeting was advertised and scheduled for May 19, 2016.  Again, only one 
contractor attended the required meeting.  As allowed by N.C.G.S. 143-129, the one bid received 
May 26, 2016, for the concrete base streets rehabilitation project follows: 
 
 City/State Bid 
 APAC-Atlantic, Inc., 
  Thompson-Arthur Division Winston-Salem, NC $3,097,298 
 
The low bidder, APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Thompson-Arthur Division has agreed to the goals 
established for this project of 5% with minority owned businesses and 5% with women-owned 
businesses.  It is recommended that a contract be awarded to APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Thompson-
Arthur Division., the low bidder meeting specifications, in the estimated amount of $3,097,298. 
 
M/WBE comment: Notices of this opportunity were sent directly to 14 contractors including four 
certified woman owned business who are licensed to provide this work. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit B 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-119-

C-6.e.      DRAFT



 

-120-



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR  

CONCRETE BASE STREETS REHABILITATION 

 
 

WHEREAS, a mandatory pre-bid conference for the concrete base streets rehabilitation 

project was held at 10:00 a.m. May 6, 2016, to discuss the City’s Minority and Women Business 

Enterprise Program and the scope of work as it relates to the project; however, only one 

contractor attended the required meeting; and  

WHEREAS, a second mandatory pre-bid conference was advertised and held at 10:00 

a.m., May 19, 2016, and only one contractor attended the required meeting; and 

 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute (N.C.G.S.) 143-132(a) requires a minimum 

of three bids for formal construction and repair contracts and N.C.G.S. 143-129 authorizes the 

project to be readvertised and awarded with less than three bids; and 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 2:00 p.m., Thursday, May 26, 2016, for the concrete base 

streets rehabilitation project and the following bid was received: 

 City/State Bid 
 APAC-Atlantic, Inc., 
  Thompson-Arthur Division Winston-Salem, NC $3,097,298 
    

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract for the 

concrete base streets rehabilitation project be awarded to APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Thompson-Arthur 

Division, the low bidder meeting specifications, in the estimated amount of $3,097,298. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that a 

contract for the concrete base streets rehabilitation project is hereby awarded to APAC-Atlantic, 

Inc., Thompson-Arthur Division, in the estimated amount of $3,097,298, and that all other bids 

are rejected, and that the City Manager and City Secretary are authorized to execute the contract 

-121-

C-6.e.      DRAFT



on behalf of the City, contract forms to be approved by the City Attorney, and bid deposit 

retained until the successful bidder has delivered satisfactory contract, performance, and labor 

and materials payment bonds. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualifications of the bidder. The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City. The bid deposit shall be retained if the 

bidder fails to execute the contract or give satisfactory surety as required by N.C.G.S. 143-129. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Thompson-Arthur Division, 

will be required to subcontract 5.5% of this contact with certified minority owned businesses and 

5% with certified women-owned businesses as indicated on Affidavit “C” submitted by the 

company. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2016-

17 approved budget and available in account no. 30-304-533116-541701 to cover the cost of this 

contract.  

-122-

C-6.e.      DRAFT



           Exhibit A 

Canterbury Trail From Windsor Road to Plymouth Avenue 

Fairfax Drive From Plymouth Avenue to Canterbury Trail 

Fairfax Drive From Canterbury Trail to Windsor Road 

S. Pine Valley Road From Country Club Road to N. Bitting Road 

S. Pine Valley Road From N. Bitting Road to Windsor Road 

N. Pine Valley Road From Country Club Road to Reynolds Drive 

N. Pine Valley Road From Reynolds Drive to Club Park Road 

N. Pine Valley Road From Club Park Road to Wellington Road 

Windsor Road From Westview Drive to N. Pine Valley Road 

Windsor Road From Pine Valley Road to Canterbury Trail 

Windsor Road From Canterbury Trail to Fairfax Drive 

-123-

C-6.e.      DRAFT



 

-124-



Exhibit B

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

221 21 155 52 35 0 0 242

% of 

Total 91.3% 8.7% 64.0% 21.5% 14.5% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for concrete base streets rehabilitation project

APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Thompson-Arthur Division

Winston-Salem, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-125-

C-6.e.      DRAFT



 

-126-



 City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 

  
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for Road Salt 

Summary of Information:  
  
On May 17, 2016, bids were received for an estimated 2,000 tons of road salt for use by the 
Department of Transportation‘s Streets Division to be ordered as needed during the period of 
November 1, 2016, through October 31, 2017.  Below is a summary of  the bids received: 
 
 City/State Per Ton Total  

The Detroit Salt Company, LLC Detroit, MI $101.22 $202,440 
Cargill, Inc.-Deicing Technology North Olmsted, OH 119.17 238,340 
Compass Minerals America Inc Overland Park, KS 120.20 240,400 
Morton Salt, Inc. Chicago, IL 121.31 242,620 

 
Terms of the bid reserves the right to extend the contract for as many as four additional 12 month 
terms with the opportunity to adjust the cost per ton by an amount not to exceed the Producer 
Price Index, if both parties agree and funds are made available for that purpose.    
 
It is recommended that a contract be awarded to The Detroit Salt Company, LLC for an estimated 
2,000 tons of road salt at a unit cost of $101.22 per ton for a total amount of $202,440 with the 
option to extend for as many as four additional 12 month terms, if both parties agree, and funds 
are made available making the total possible award over five years in the estimated amount of 
$1,012,200. 
 
DELIVERY: as needed 
 
M/WBE COMMENT:  There are no known local minorities or woman-owned companies that sell 
this product. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-127-

C-6.f.      DRAFT



 

-128-



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR ROAD SALT 

 

 

 WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

Purchasing Department at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, May 17, 2016, for 2,000 tons of road salt for 

use by the Department of Transportation’s Streets Division to be ordered as needed during the 

period from November 1, 2016, through October 31, 2017, and the following bids were received: 

 City/State Per Ton Total  
The Detroit Salt Company, LLC Detroit, MI $101.22 $202,440 
Cargill, Inc.-Deicing Technology North Olmsted, OH 119.17 238,340 
Compass Minerals America Inc Overland Park, KS 120.20 240,400 
Morton Salt, Inc. Chicago, IL 121.31 242,620 

 
 WHEREAS, terms of the bid reserves the right to extend the contract for as many as four 

additional 12 month terms with the opportunity to adjust the cost per ton by an amount not to 

exceed the Producer Price Index, if both parties agree, and funds are made available for that 

purpose; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded to The Detroit Salt Company, LLC for 2,000 tons of road salt at a unit cost of $101.22 

per ton for a total amount of $202,440 with the option to extend for as many as four additional 12 

month terms, if both parties agree, and funds are made available for that purpose making the total 

possible award over five years in the estimated amount of $1,012,200.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that the 

contract for 2,000 tons of road salt to be ordered as needed from November 1, 2016, through 

October 31, 2017, is hereby awarded to The Detroit Salt Company, LLC for  2,000 tons of road 

salt at a unit cost of $101.22 per ton for a total amount of $202,440 with the option to extend for 

as many as four additional 12 month terms, if both parties agree, and funds are made available 

for that purpose making the total possible award over five years in the estimated amount of 

-129-

C-6.f.      DRAFT



$1,012,200, and that the City Manager and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute the 

contract on behalf of the City, contract forms to be approved by the City Attorney. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds have been previously appropriated and are 

available in account no. 014620-5261 to cover the cost of this contract. 

-130-

C-6.f.      DRAFT



Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

American Total

52 6 48 1 0 9 0 58

% of 

Total 89.7% 10.3% 82.8% 1.7% 0.0% 15.5% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in 

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

Exhibit A

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for road salt

The Detroit Salt Company, LLC

Detroit, Michigan

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-131-

C-6.f.      DRAFT



 

-132-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director  

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Order for Conventional Cab Truck with Hook Lift 
Hoist Body 

Summary of Information:  
 
Bids were received May 10, 2016, for the purchase of a conventional cab truck with hook lift 
hoist body to be used by the Vegetation Management Division of the Property and Facilities 
Maintenance Department. This truck is a scheduled replacement for vehicle 8524, a 1991 
Chevrolet 7000 with 62,400 miles, acquisition cost of $28,278.60 and accumulated maintenance 
and repair costs of $10,575.55. This truck carries a 1000 gallon water tank and pumping system 
from Spring through Fall and is used for watering new vegetation. The truck is used for hauling 
during the remainder of the year. Summary of bids accepted: 
 
  City/State Total Bid  
 White's Tractor and Truck Co., LLC Greensboro, NC $128,540.67 
 Transource, Inc. Greensboro, NC 128,898.00 
 Triad Freightliner of Greensboro, Inc. Greensboro, NC 134,267.00 
 Piedmont Peterbilt, LLC Greensboro, NC 137,456.00 
 
The City’s FY 2015-16 capital equipment budget includes $145,000 for this purchase; therefore, 
it is recommended that a purchase order be awarded to White’s Tractor and Truck Co., LLC for 
the purchase of a conventional cab truck with hook lift hoist body in the amount of $128,540.67. 
 
The purchase of these vehicles will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing 
Corporation.  Funding for the lease payments is available in the General Fund FY 2015-16 
budget.  
 
M/WBE comment:  There are no known area minority or woman-owned companies that sell 
these vehicles. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 
 
 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

-133-

C-6.g.      DRAFT



 

-134-

C-6.g.      DRAFT



  RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR 

CONVENTIONAL CAB TRUCK WITH HOOK LIFT HOIST BODY 

 
 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 12:00 Noon, Tuesday, May 10, 2016, for the purchase of 

a conventional cab truck with hook lift hoist body to be used by the Vegetation Management 

Division of the Property and Facilities Maintenance Department; and the following bids were 

received: 

  City/State Total Bid  
 White's Tractor and Truck Co., LLC Greensboro, NC $128,540.67 
 Transource, Inc. Greensboro, NC 128,898.00 
 Triad Freightliner of Greensboro, Inc. Greensboro, NC 134,267.00 
 Piedmont Peterbilt, LLC Greensboro, NC 137,456.00 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s FY 2015-16 capital equipment budget includes $145,000 for this 

purchase; therefore, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a purchase order be 

awarded to White’s Tractor and Truck Co., LLC, low bidder meeting specifications, for the 

purchase of conventional cab truck with hook lift hoist body in the amount of $128.540.67. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that a 

purchase order for a conventional cab truck with hook lift hoist body is hereby awarded to 

White’s Tractor and Truck Co., LLC in the total amount of $128,540.67 and that all other bids 

are rejected. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the purchase until the purchase order is duly executed by the City. 

-135-

C-6.g.      DRAFT



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the purchase is included in the FY 2015-16 capital 

budget and will be financed through the North Carolina Municipal Leasing Corporation with 

funding for the lease payments available in the FY 2015-16 General Fund budget. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City may reimburse itself for the capital 

expenditures identified herein with the proceeds from the sale of tax-exempt obligations. 

 

 

-136-

C-6.g.      DRAFT



Exhibit A

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

42 8 41 5 3 1 0 50

% of 

Total 84.0% 16.0% 82.0% 10.0% 6.0% 2.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in the

workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this information is

not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Conventional Cab Truck with Hooklift Hoist Body

White's Truck and Tractor Company, LLC

Greensboro, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-137-

C-6.g.      DRAFT



 

-138-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 

  
Adoption of Resolution Awarding a Purchase Order for Vehicle Parts and Supplies. 
 

Summary of Information:  
 
The Winston-Salem Fleet Services Department has regular needs to purchase vehicle parts and 
supplies and the department utilizes several different local businesses for these purchases.  After 
receiving bids, the National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) awarded contract #031212-GPC for 
vehicle parts and supplies to NAPA Auto Parts, Inc.   
 
It is recommended to award a purchase order for vehicle parts and supplies for the period of July 
1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, to NAPA Auto Parts, Inc. in the estimated amount of $150,000, 
under and in accordance with the NJPA awarded contract #031212-GPC. 
 
N.C.G.S. 143-129(e)(3) authorizes “purchases made through a competitive bidding group 
purchasing program, which is a formally organized program that offers competitively obtained 
purchasing services at discount prices to two or more public agencies.”   
 
M/WBE COMMENT:  NAPA Auto Parts, Inc. was awarded contract #031212-GPC by NJPA as 
an approved business for vehicle parts and supplies. 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-139-

C-6.h.      DRAFT



 

-140-



 

 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE ORDER FOR 

 VEHICLE PARTS AND SUPPLIES 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Winston-Salem Fleet Department has regular needs to purchase vehicle 

parts and supplies; and 

 WHEREAS, after receiving bids, National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) awarded 

contract #031212-GPC for vehicle parts and supplies to NAPA Auto Parts, Inc.; and 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 143-129(e)(3) authorizes “purchases made through a competitive 

bidding group purchasing program, which is a formally organized program that offers 

competitively obtained purchasing services at discount prices to two or more public agencies.”; 

and 

 WHEREAS, NAPA Auto Parts, Inc. was awarded contract #031212-GPC to provide 

vehicle parts and supplies at discount prices; and 

 WHEREAS, it is recommended to award a purchase order for vehicle parts and supplies 

for the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, to NAPA Auto Parts, Inc. in the estimated 

amount of $150,000, under and in accordance with the NJPA awarded contract #031212-GPC. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that a 

purchase order for vehicle parts and supplies for the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 

2017, is hereby awarded to NAPA Auto Parts, Inc. in the estimated amount of $150,000, under 

and in accordance with the NJPA awarded contract #031212-GPC. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the contract until the order is duly executed by the City.  

-141-

C-6.h.      DRAFT



 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2016-

17 budget and available in various accounts to cover the cost of these purchase orders.  

 

-142-

C-6.h.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of a Resolution Awarding Purchase Orders for Auto and Truck Tires. 

Summary of Information: 
 
The Winston-Salem Fleet Services Department has regular needs to purchase auto and truck 
tires.  After receiving bids, the State of North Carolina awarded term contract 863A for the 
period of March 1, 2014 through February 28, 2017.  Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company, 
Parrish Tire Company, Inc., Mock Tire & Automotive, Inc., and Snider Tire Company (all 
Winston-Salem businesses) were selected as authorized to provide vehicle tires at state contract 
pricing. 
 
It is recommended to award purchase orders for auto and truck tires from the period of July 1, 
2016, through June 30, 2017, to Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company in the estimated amount of 
$100,000, Parrish Tire Company, Inc. in the estimated amount of $120,000, Mock Tire & 
Automotive, Inc. in the estimated amount of $70,000, and Snider Tire Company in the estimated 
amount of $160,000, under and in accordance with the North Carolina State Contract. 
 
This recommendation is in accordance with N.C.G.S 143-129(e)(9): "The [bidding] requirements 
of this article do not apply to...Purchases from contracts established by the State or any agency of 
the State, if the contractor is willing to extend to a political subdivision of the State the same or 
more favorable prices, terms, or conditions as established in the State contract."   
 
M/WBE comment:  Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company, Parrish Tire Company, Inc., Mock Tire 
& Automotive, Inc., and Snider Tire Company were selected by the State of North Carolina as 
approved dealers for these tire purchases. 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-143-

C-6.i.      DRAFT



 

-144-



 

 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDERS FOR 

 AUTO AND TRUCK TIRES 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Winston-Salem Fleet Department has regular needs to purchase auto 

and truck tires; and 

 WHEREAS, after receiving bids, the State of North Carolina awarded term contract 

863A for auto and truck tires for the period of March 1, 2014 through February 28, 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S 143-129(e)(9): "The [bidding] requirements of this article do not 

apply to...Purchases from contracts established by the State or any agency of the State, if the 

contractor is willing to extend to a political subdivision of the State the same or more favorable 

prices, terms, or conditions as established in the State Contract."; and 

 WHEREAS, Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company, Parrish Tire Company, Inc., Mock Tire 

& Automotive, Inc., and Snider Tire Company were selected as businesses authorized to provide 

auto and truck tires at the state contract pricing; and 

 WHEREAS, it is recommended to award purchase orders for auto and truck tires from 

the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, to Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company in the 

estimated amount of $100,000, Parrish Tire Company, Inc. in the estimated amount of $120,000, 

Mock Tire & Automotive, Inc. in the estimated amount of $70,000, and Snider Tire Company in 

the estimated amount of $160,000, under and in accordance with the North Carolina State 

Contract. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that 

purchase orders for auto and truck tires from the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, 

are hereby awarded to Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company in the estimated amount of $100,000, 

Parrish Tire Company, Inc. in the estimated amount of $120,000, Mock Tire & Automotive, Inc. 

-145-

C-6.i.      DRAFT



 

 

in the estimated amount of $70,000, and Snider Tire Company in the estimated amount of 

$160,000, under and in accordance with the North Carolina State Contract. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of these purchase orders constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the contract until the order is duly executed by the City.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2016-

17 budget and available in various accounts to cover the cost of these purchase orders. 

-146-

C-6.i.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Orders for Certain Sole Source Vendors.  

Summary of Information:    
 
The Winston-Salem Fleet Department is requesting the approval to award purchase orders to 

equipment vendors for parts, repairs, and maintenance of equipment used in City operations 

which is only available through the authorized distributor or by the manufacturer of the 

equipment.  The complete list of vendors is available on Exhibit A following the resolution. 

  

It is recommended that purchase orders for equipment vendors supplying parts, repairs, and 

maintenance of equipment used in City operations from the period of July 1, 2016, through June 

30, 2017, be awarded to each vendor based on historical spend data as identified on Exhibit A. 

 

These recommendations are based upon provisions of N.C.G.S. 143-129(e) which provides that 

the formal bid requirements “do not apply to purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials, or 

equipment when: (i) performance or price competition for a product are not available; (ii) a 

needed product is available from only one source of supply.” 

 

M/WBE comment:  There are no known minority or women owned businesses that are authorized 

distributors or manufacturers of this equipment. 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-147-

C-6.j.      DRAFT



 

-148-



 

 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDERS FOR 

 CERTAIN SOLE SOURCE VENDORS 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the Winston-Salem Fleet Department is requesting the approval to award 

purchase orders with equipment vendors for parts, repairs, and maintenance of equipment used in 

City operations which is only available through the authorized dealer/distributor or by the 

manufacturer of the equipment; and 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 143-129(e) provides that formal bid procedures “shall not apply 

to purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment when performance or price 

competition for a product are not available; when a needed product is available from only one 

source of supply”; and 

 WHEREAS, equipment vendors supplying parts, repairs, and maintenance of equipment 

used in City operations listed on Exhibit A have been identified as the only authorized distributor 

or manufacturer of the equipment; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that purchase orders for 

equipment vendors supplying parts, repairs, and maintenance of equipment used in City 

operations from the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, be awarded to each vendor 

based on historical spend data as identified on Exhibit A. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that 

purchase orders for equipment vendors supplying parts, repairs, and maintenance of equipment 

used in City operations from the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, are hereby 

awarded to each vendor based on historical spend data as identified on Exhibit A. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of these purchase orders constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

-149-

C-6.j.      DRAFT



 

 

perform the contract until the order is duly executed by the City.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2016-

17 budget and available in various accounts to cover the cost of these purchase orders.  

-150-

C-6.j.      DRAFT



Exbibit A

Sole Source Vendor City/State Brand

Estimated 

Annual 

Spend

Advantage Truck Center, LLC Kernersville, NC Volvo $15,000

ASC Construction Equipment USA, Inc. Charlotte, NC Volvo, construction equipment $2,500

Bobco, Inc., dba Winston Tractor Company Winston-Salem, NC Ford/New Holland Tractors $4,000

Bruder/Sharpe, Inc Madison, NC Camel, Sewer Equipment of America $2,500

Carolina Environment Systems, Inc. Kernersville, NC Heil compacting system $100,000

Carolina Industrial Equipment, Inc. Charlotte, NC Cushman, Vantage $1,000

Carolina Tractor & Equipment Company Greensboro, NC Cat/Prentice $85,000

Clarke Power Services, Inc. Greensboro, NC Allison Transmission $27,000

Cummins Atlantic, LLC Greensboro, NC Cummins Engines $5,000

Flow Chevrolet, LLC Winston-Salem, NC Chevrolet $62,000

Godwin Manufacturing Co., Inc. Dunn, NC Godwin Dump bodies, Good Roads $4,000

James River Equipment Carolina, LLC Greensboro, NC John Deere $150,000

Map Enterprises, Inc. Graham, NC VersaLift, Effer crane $25,000

Modern Toyota, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC Toyota $3,000

North Point Chrysler Jeep, Inc Winston-Salem, NC Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep $25,000

Old Dominion Brush Company, Inc. Richmond, VA ODB $165,000

Parkway Ford, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC Ford/Lincoln $31,000

Piedmont Ford Truck Sales, Inc. Greensboro, NC Ford F550-7500, Sterling $51,000

Scruggs Equipment Company, Inc. Mineral Springs, NC Valk, Do-All $7,000

Terry Labonte, Inc. Greensboro, NC Chevrolet 550 and up $83,000

Transource, Inc. Kernersville, NC Mack $106,000

Triad Freightliner of Greensboro, Inc. Greensboro, NC Freightliner $3,000

Whites Tractor & Trucks Co., LLC Greensboro, NC International $25,000

Total Estimated spend $982,000

-151-

C-6.j.      DRAFT



 

-152-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Orders for Auto and Truck Parts and Supplies. 

Summary of Information: 
 
The Winston-Salem Fleet Services Department has daily requirements for auto and truck parts 
and supplies used to perform repairs and maintenance on City vehicles and equipment.  The 
department utilizes several different Winston-Salem businesses for these purchases and is 
requesting purchase orders based upon historical spend data be awarded to Auto Supply 
Company, Inc. in the estimated amount of $130,000, Carquest Auto Parts of Winston-Salem, Inc. 
in the estimated amount of $90,000, and Auto Zone Stores, LLC in the estimated amount of 
$35,000.  
 
It is recommended to award a purchase orders for vehicle parts and supplies from the period of 
July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, Auto Supply Company, Inc. in the estimated amount of 
$130,000, Carquest Auto Parts of Winston-Salem, Inc. in the estimated amount of $90,000, and 
Auto Zone Stores, LLC in the estimated amount of $35,000. 
 
M/WBE comment:  There are no known minority or women-owned businesses that provide these 
parts or supplies. 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-153-

C-6.k.      DRAFT



 

-154-



 

 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE ORDER FOR 

 AUTO AND TRUCK PARTS AND SUPPLIES 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Winston-Salem Fleet Services Department has daily requirements for auto 

and truck parts and supplies used to perform repairs and maintenance on City vehicles and 

equipment; and 

 WHEREAS, the department utilizes several different Winston-Salem businesses for 

these purchases and is requesting purchase orders based upon historical spend data be awarded to 

Auto Supply Company, Inc. in the estimated amount of $130,000, Carquest Auto Parts of 

Winston-Salem, Inc. in the estimated amount of $90,000, and Auto Zone Stores, LLC in the 

estimated amount of $35,000; and 

 WHEREAS, it is recommended to award a purchase orders for vehicle parts and supplies 

from the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, Auto Supply Company, Inc. in the 

estimated amount of $130,000, Carquest Auto Parts of Winston-Salem, Inc. in the estimated 

amount of $90,000, and Auto Zone Stores, LLC in the estimated amount of $35,000. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that 

purchase orders for vehicle parts and supplies from the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 

2017, are hereby awarded to Carquest Auto Parts of Winston-Salem, Inc. in the estimated 

amount of $90,000, and Auto Zone Stores, LLC in the estimated amount of $35,000. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of these purchase orders constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the contract until the order is duly executed by the City.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2016-

17 budget and available in various accounts to cover the cost of these purchase orders.  

-155-

C-6.k.      DRAFT



 

 

 

-156-

C-6.k.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Purchase Order for Towing Services. 

Summary of Information: 
 
The Winston-Salem Fleet Services Department has regular needs for equipment towing services.  
The department utilizes several towing services for light duty vehicles but Davis Garage, Inc. is 
the primary provider for heavy equipment towing services.  Davis provides excellent service, 
quick response time, and offers the most economical cost per tow to the City.  Historical spend 
information indicates that the Fleet Department spends an estimated $120,000 per year for these 
heavy equipment towing services.   
 
It is recommended to award a purchase order for heavy equipment towing services from the 
period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, to Davis Garage, Inc. in the estimated amount of 
$120,000. 
 
M/WBE comment:  There are no known minority or women owned businesses that provide 
heavy equipment towing services. 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-157-

C-6.l.      DRAFT



 

-158-



 

 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR TOWING SERVICES 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Winston-Salem Fleet Department has regular needs for equipment 

towing services; and 

 WHEREAS, the department utilizes several towing services for light duty vehicles but 

Davis Garage, Inc. is the primary provider for heavy equipment towing services; and 

 WHEREAS, historical spend information indicates that the Fleet Department spends an 

estimated $120,000 per year for these heavy equipment towing services; and 

 WHEREAS, it is recommended to award a purchase order for heavy equipment towing 

services from the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, to Davis Garage, Inc. in the 

estimated amount of $120,000. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that a 

purchase order for heavy equipment towing services from the period of July 1, 2016, through 

June 30, 2017, is hereby awarded to Davis Garage, Inc. in the estimated amount of $120,000. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this purchase order constitutes a 

preliminary determination as to the qualification of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to 

perform the contract until the order is duly executed by the City.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds will be appropriated in the fiscal 2016-17 

budget and available in various accounts to cover the cost of this contract.  

 

-159-

C-6.l.      DRAFT



 

-160-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for Construction of Sprayground at Reynolds Park 
Pool (Southeast Ward) 

Summary of Information: 
 
Bids were received May 26, 2016, for construction of a sprayground at Reynolds Park Pool.   The 
project involves installing Vortex interactive water play features, a concrete splash pad with 
water collection drains, underground water tank and piping, recirculation pump and electrical, a 
small pump house addition, concrete walkways, grading and site modifications.  Below is a 
summary of the bids accepted: 
 
   City/State Total Bid 
 DreamBuilt Construction, Inc. Advance, NC   $297,250 
 Crest Construction Corp., Inc. Charlotte, NC   317,000 
 
Included in each contractor’s bid was an allowance of $77,381 for the purchase of Vortex 
sprayground equipment.  The City has determined that it is in their best interests to remove that 
item from the bid and purchase this equipment to accelerate the construction completion.  It is 
recommended that a contract be awarded to DreamBuilt Construction, Inc., the low bidder 
meeting specifications, in the remaining amount of $220,139.  The construction estimate was 
$259,144. 
 
M/WBE comment: Notices were sent to fourteen general and pool contractors, including six 
minority-owned and three woman-owned businesses, who requested bidding documents or bid on 
past sprayground projects.  Crest Construction Corp., Inc. is a minority-owned business and 
DreamBuilt Construction, Inc. is a woman-owned business. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 
 
 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-161-

C-6.m.      DRAFT



 

-162-



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR 

SPRAYGROUND AT REYNOLDS PARK POOL 

 
 

WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 11:00 AM, Thursday, May 26, 2016, for construction of a 

sprayground at Reynolds Park Pool and the following bids were received: 

   City/State Total Bid 
 DreamBuilt Construction, Inc. Advance, NC   $297,250 
 Crest Construction Corp., Inc. Charlotte, NC   317,000 
  
  
 WHEREAS, included in each contractor’s bid was an allowance of $77,381 for the 

purchase of Vortex sprayground equipment and the City has determined to remove that item 

from the bid and purchase this equipment to accelerate the construction completion; and 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded to DreamBuilt Construction, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications, for 

construction of a sprayground at Reynolds Park Pool in the estimated total amount of $220,139. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem that the contract for construction of a sprayground at Reynolds Park Pool is 

hereby awarded to DreamBuilt Construction, Inc., in the estimated total amount of $220,139.  

The City Manager and City Secretary are authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the 

City, with contract to be approved by the City Attorney. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualifications of the bidder. The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds have been previously appropriated and will 

be made available in account nos. 305-533109-563103 to cover the cost of this contract. 

-163-

C-6.m.      DRAFT



 

-164-



Exhibit A

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

2 3 5 0 0 0 0 5

% of 

Total 40.0% 60.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Sprayground at Reynolds Park Pool

Dreambuilt Construction, Inc.

Advance, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-165-

C-6.m.      DRAFT



 

-166-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for Construction of a Sprayground at Sedge Garden 
Park (East Ward) 

Summary of Information: 
 
Bids were received May 26, 2016, for construction of a sprayground at Sedge Garden Park.  The 
project involves installing Vortex interactive water play features, a concrete splash pad with 
water collection drains, underground water tank and piping, recirculation pump and electrical, a 
small pump house addition, concrete walkways, a stormwater pipe connection, grading and site 
modifications.  Below is a summary of the bids accepted on May 26, 2016: 
 
  City/State Base Bid 
 Crest Construction Corp., Inc. Charlotte, NC $325,000.00 
 DreamBuilt Construction, Inc. Advance, NC 325,826.00 
 W.C. Construction Co., LLC Winston-Salem, NC 367,709.71 
 Construction Concepts and Design, Inc. Charlotte, NC 376,325.00 

Included in each contractor’s bid was an allowance of $87,324.71 for the purchase of Vortex 
sprayground equipment.  The City has determined that it is in their best interests to remove that 
item from the bid and purchase this equipment to accelerate the construction completion.  It is 
recommended that a contract be awarded to Crest Construction Corp., Inc., the low bidder 
meeting specifications, in the remaining amount of $237,675.29.  The construction estimate was 
$272,188. 
 
M/WBE comment: Notices were sent to fourteen general and pool contractors, including six 
minority-owned and three woman-owned businesses, who requested bidding documents or bid on 
past sprayground projects.  Crest Construction Corp., Inc., W.C. Construction Co., LLC, and 
Construction Concepts & Design, Inc. are minority-owned business and DreamBuilt 
Construction, Inc. is a woman-owned business. 
 
Workforce Demographics: See Exhibit A 
 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

-167-

C-6.n.      DRAFT



 

-168-

C-6.n.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR 

SPRAYGROUND AT SEDGE GARDEN PARK 
 

 

 WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 11:00 AM, Thursday, May 26, 2016, for construction of a 

sprayground at Sedge Garden Park; and the following bids were received: 

  City/State Base Bid 
 Crest Construction Corp., Inc. Winston-Salem, NC $325,000.00 
 DreamBuilt Construction, Inc. Advance, NC 325,826.00 
 W.C. Construction Co., LLC Advance, NC 367,709.71 
 Construction Concepts and Design, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC 376,325.00 

WHEREAS, included in each contractor’s bid was an allowance of $87,324.71 for the 

purchase of Vortex sprayground equipment and the City has determined to remove that item 

from the bid and purchase this equipment to accelerate the construction completion; and 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract be 

awarded to Crest Construction Corp., Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications, for 

construction of a sprayground at Sedge Garden Park in the estimated total amount of 

$237,675.29. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Winston-Salem that the contract for construction of a sprayground at Sedge Garden Park is 

hereby awarded to Crest Construction Corp., Inc., in the estimated total amount of $237,675.29.  

The City Manager and City Secretary are authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the 

City, with contract to be approved by the City Attorney. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to the qualifications of the bidder. The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City. 

-169-

C-6.n.      DRAFT



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds have been previously appropriated and will 

be made available in account no. 305-533109-563101 to cover the cost of this contract.  

-170-

C-6.n.      DRAFT



Exhibit A

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

31 4 4 14 16 1 0 35

% of 

Total 88.6% 11.4% 11.4% 40.0% 45.7% 2.9% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Sprayground at Sedge Garden Park

Crest Construction Corp., Inc.

Charlotte, NC

(also Enterprise Center, Winston-Salem, NC)

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-171-

C-6.n.      DRAFT



 

-172-



 

City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
Consideration of Items Related to Awarding Contract for Winston Lake Aquatic Park 

A. Adoption of Resolution Awarding Contract for Winston Lake Aquatic Park. (East Ward) 
B. Project Budget Ordinance Amendment to Appropriate Additional Funds. 

Summary of Information: 
 
Bids were scheduled to be received May 10, 2016, for the Winston Lake Aquatic Park project.  
North Carolina General Statute (N.C.G.S.) 143-132(a) requires a minimum of three bids for 
formal construction and repair contracts; however, only two bids were offered. Therefore, as 
authorized by N.C.G.S. 143-129, the project was readvertised and bids were then opened on May 
19, 2016. 
 
The project scope includes new site construction of an Aquatic Center containing a recreational 
swimming pool with water slide, a lazy river, a zero-entry wading pool with a water-play 
structure, a splash area with waterfall, an equipment building, and a pool house containing men’s 
and women’s dressing rooms, an administrative room, concessions and storage. Bids received 
summary follows: 
 
   City/State Total Base Bid  
 Bar Construction Company, Inc. Greensboro, NC $4,713,000 
 New Atlantic Contracting, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC 5,343,450 
 
The low bidder, Bar Construction Company, Inc., has agreed to the subcontract goals established 
for this project of 10% with minority-owned businesses and 10% with women-owned businesses. 
It is recommended that a contract be awarded to Bar Construction Company, Inc., the low bidder 
meeting specifications, in the estimated total base bid amount of $4,713,000. The construction 
budget for this project is $4,747,140. 
 
An amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance is attached which appropriates additional funds 
to supplement the funds currently available in the project budget to complete this project. 
 
M/WBE comment: This project was advertised on the City’s website, iSQFT electronic plan 
room, and 46 general contractors and 11 M/WBE subcontractors were notified directly of this 
opportunity.   
 
Workplace Demographics:  See Exhibit A 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

-173-

C-7.      DRAFT



 

-174-



Exhibit A

Male Female White

African-

American Hispanic Asian

Native-

Americian Total

25 7 28 1 3 0 0 32

% of 

Total 78.1% 21.9% 87.5% 3.1% 9.4% 0.0% 0.0%

The above demographic data is provided to reflect generally the company's efforts to achieve diversity in

the workplace in compliance with the applicable equal employment opportunity laws; however, this

information is not dispositive of such and may not be used as the basis for awarding or rejecting a bid

contract.

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS

Project/Bid Description:

Bidder's Company Name:

City/State:

Contract for Winston Lake Aquatic Park

Bar Construction Company, Inc

Greensboro, NC

Race/Ethnic IdentificationGender

-175-

C-7.      DRAFT



 

-176-



RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR 

 WINSTON LAKE AQUATIC PARK 
 

 

 WHEREAS, bids were scheduled to be received May 10, 2016, for the Winston Lake 

Aquatic Park project but only two bids were offered; and  

 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute (N.C.G.S.) 143-132(a) requires a minimum 

of three bids for formal construction and repair contracts and N.C.G.S. 143-129 authorizes the 

project to be readvertised; and 

 WHEREAS, after due advertisement, bids were received and publicly opened by the 

City/County Purchasing Department at 2:00 p.m., Thursday, May 19, 2016, for the Winston 

Lake Aquatic Park project; and the following bids were received: 

   City/State Total Base Bid  
 Bar Construction Company, Inc. Greensboro, NC $4,713,000 
 New Atlantic Contracting, Inc. Winston-Salem, NC 5,343,450 

  

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Finance Committee that a contract for 

construction of the Winston Lake Aquatic Park project be awarded to Bar Construction 

Company, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications, in the estimated total base bid amount of 

$4,713,000. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that a 

contract for construction of the Winston Lake Aquatic Park project is hereby awarded to Bar 

Construction Company, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications, in the estimated total base 

bid amount of $4,713,000, and that all other bids are rejected, and that the City Manager and 

City Secretary are authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the City, contract forms to be 

approved by the City Attorney and bid deposit retained until the successful bidder has provided 

satisfactory contract, performance and labor and materials payment bonds. 

-177-

C-7.a.      DRAFT



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of this contract constitutes a preliminary 

determination as to qualifications of the bidder.  The City is not legally bound to perform the 

contract until the contract is duly executed by the City.  The bid deposit shall be retained if the 

bidder fails to execute the contract or give satisfactory surety as required by N.C.G.S. 143-129. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Bar Construction Company, Inc., will be required 

to subcontract 10.89% of this contract with certified minority-owned firms and 10.06% with 

certified women-owned firms as indicated on Affidavit “C” submitted by the company.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funds have been previously appropriated and are 

available in account no. 305-532102-563203 to cover the cost of this contract. 

-178-

C-7.a.      DRAFT



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

 CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 be amended to reallocate previously 

approved bond funds for the Winston Lake Aquatics Facility. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 15, 2015 and amended on July 20, 2015, August 17, 2015, September 21, 2015, October 

26, 2015, November 16, 2015, December 21, 2015, January 19, 2016, February 15, 2016, March 

28, 2016, April 18, 2016, and May 16, 2016, shall be further amended by changing the 

expenditure appropriations in the following funds. 

  
 

  
 Capital Projects Fund 

 

 Recreation Projects   

    2014 GO Bond – Happy Hill Park Renovations -$1,000,000  

    2014 GO Bond – Winston Lake Aquatics Facility 1,000,000  

 

 Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures $0  

    

SECTION 2. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

effective as of the date of adoption. 

-179-

C-7.b.      DRAFT



 

-180-



City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: June 20, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: 
Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager 
Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Waive Bonding Requirements Below 
the Statutory Limits. 

Summary of Information: 
 
North Carolina General Statute 143-129(b) requires bidders to provide a 5% Bid Guarantee with 
their bid on formal construction/repair projects exceeding $500,000.  The purpose of the Bid 
Guarantee is to ensure the low bidder honors its bid and executes the contract.  A default by the 
low bidder means the City can retain the 5% amount and apply it toward the difference in 
awarding to the next low bidder.  Surety companies charge bidders a small premium to provide 
the 5% Bid Guarantee, or bidders can submit a certified check equal to 5% of their bid. 
 
North Carolina General Statute (N.C.G.S.) 44A-26 requires that the awarded contractor provide 
100% Performance and Payment Bonds for construction/repair projects exceeding $300,000.  
The performance bond guarantees completion of the project if the contractor defaults.  The 
payment bond pays subcontractors and suppliers if the contractor defaults or refuses to pay them.  
Bidder cost to provide the 100% performance and payment bonds typically ranges from 1.5% to 
3.5% of the project’s cost, but can be proportionally higher for companies the surety considers a 
greater risk. 
 
In 2009, a member of Council suggested requiring 100% Performance and Payment Bonds on all 
contracts exceeding $100,000 in order to mitigate risk to the City.  Also, the City’s current 
business practice is to require a 5% Bid Guarantee whenever 100% Performance and Payment 
Bonds are required.  While these practices have been in place such a policy has never been 
formally adopted by Council. 
 
It has come to the attention of City staff that these bonding requirements are preventing smaller 
companies from bidding on City projects for which they may be qualified and/or interested. It is 
recommended that the City Manager be given the authority to waive the above bonding 
requirements when below statutory limits, on a project specific basis, where it is found or 
believed that the cost to provide such bonds creates a barrier to bidding by local and M/WBE 
companies and where a project is judged to have less risk to the City. 

Committee Action: 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks:  

 

-181-

C-8.      DRAFT



 

-182-



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER WAIVE BONDING 

REQUIREMENTS BELOW THE STATUTORY LIMITS 

 

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 143-129(b) requires bidders to provide a 5% Bid Guarantee with 

their bid on formal construction/repair projects exceeding $500,000; and 

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S 44A-26 requires that the awarded contractor provide 100% 

Performance and Payment Bonds for construction/repair projects exceeding $300,000; and 

WHEREAS, in 2009, a member of Council suggested requiring 100% Performance and 

Payment Bonds on all contracts exceeding $100,000 and the City’s current business practice is to 

require a 5% Bid Guarantee whenever 100% Performance and Payment Bonds are required in 

order to mitigate risk to the City; and 

WHEREAS, while these practices have been in place such a policy has never been 

formally adopted by Council. 

WHEREAS, it has come to the attention of City staff that these bonding requirements 

are preventing smaller companies from bidding on City projects for which they may be qualified 

and/or interested; and 

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City Manager be given the authority to waive 

the above bonding requirements when below statutory limits, on a project specific basis, where it 

is found or believed that the cost to provide such bonds creates a barrier to bidding by local and 

M/WBE companies and where a project is judged to have less risk to the City 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that the City 

Manager be given the authority to waive the above bonding requirements when below statutory 

limits, on a project specific basis, where it is found or believed that the cost to provide such 

bonds creates a barrier to bidding by local and M/WBE companies and where a project is judged 

to have less risk to the City.  

-183-

C-8.      DRAFT



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall become effective as of the 

date of adoption.   

 

-184-

C-8.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: June 1, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

Consideration of Amendments to the FY 15-16 Budget Ordinances for the City of Winston-
Salem, North Carolina. 

Summary of Information:  
 
The proposed amendments to the FY 15-16 budget ordinances authorize adjustments for the 
following purposes.  
 

Appropriation of Grants and Other Revenues Received 

o  Final payment has been received from the North Carolina Department of 

Transportation for eligible expenses for the conversion of 4th Street to two way. The 

proposed amendment appropriates $57,130 in order to proceed with final close out 

of the project. 

o  The Police Department has received additional federal forfeiture funds from the 

United States Department of Justice totaling $44,090 and additional state controlled 

substance tax receipts from the Office of the State Auditor totaling $22,020 for the 

following: officer training ($19,400), K-9 supplies including food and veterinarian 

expenses ($19,400), and the purchase of equipment ($27,310). 

o  The Police Department has received donations in the amount of $1,000 from the 

Forsyth County Kennel Club for the purchase of protective vests for K-9 dogs and 

$7,110 from Waughtown Business Associates for the purchase of a police K-9. The 

proposed amendment appropriates these contributions. 

  

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-185-

C-9.      DRAFT



o  The City has received additional property settlements from the City Yard land sale. 

The proposed amendment appropriates $854,930 in settlement funds for the Lowery 

Street Facility construction project. These funds will allow for the purchase of 

furniture, connection of city-owned fiber, and additional security controls to be 

installed.  

 

o  The proposed amendment appropriates $39,730 in contributions from businesses 

and individuals received during the fiscal year to support the Recreation and Parks 

Department’s programs and centers. 

 
o  The proposed amendment appropriates $7,890 in additional revenue from 

contributions and sponsorships received by the Human Relations Department 

during the fiscal year for the funding of specific programs of the department, which 

will cover additional authorized expenditures. 

o  The Human Relations Department has received two additional grants for the Youth 

Advisory Council. One grant is from the State of North Carolina Department of 

Administration Youth Advocacy Office for $400 and the other grant is in the 

amount of $250 from the Youth Grantmakers with the Winston-Salem Foundation.  

These funds will be used for the end-of-year Community Service Leadership 

Projects for the Youth Advisory Council.  

o  The proposed amendment appropriates $3,050 in additional revenue from 

contributions and sponsorships for the Fair Housing Summit event that was 

coordinated for the Fair Housing Program.  These contributions have been received 

by the Human Relations Department. 

Center City West Parking Deck Debt Service 

 

o  On March 28, 2016, the Mayor and City Council authorized the sale of the Center 

City West Parking Deck in the amount of $2,275,000 to Center City West 

Associates, LLC. The proposed amendment appropriates a portion of these 

proceeds for debt service costs, in the amount of $917,360. The debt service costs 

reflect the retirement of outstanding debt following the sale of the deck. 

 

Winston-Salem Fairgrounds  

 

o  The proposed amendment appropriates $135,000 in additional operating 

expenditures for the Winston-Salem Fairgrounds for non-fair events.  To date, 

operating revenues for non-fair events have exceeded the budget by $102,400, and 

events are estimated to generate additional revenues necessary to cover this increase 

in event-related expenses.  The amendment appropriates these revenues in order to 

-186-

C-9.      DRAFT



provide sufficient funding for the contractual expenses associated with the events 

that generate this revenue.   

 

Technical Adjustments to Operating and Capital Projects Budgets 

 

o  The proposed amendment transfers $550,000 in general fund appropriations from 

the Transportation Service Area to the Public Safety Service Area to cover 

operating expenses for the Fire Department.  Fire Department personnel expenses 

are projected to exceed budget due to the timing of an additional recruit class and 

increases in callback overtime to meet minimum staffing requirements.   

 

o  On March 28, 2016, the Mayor and Council approved the substitution of Urban 

Development Action Grant (UDAG) funds with economic development funds for 

the Southeast Gateway Plaza project. This was to maintain compliance with 

standards from the Davis-Bacon Act. The Finance Department has discovered that 

the funds were not originally UDAG funds, but capital reserves from the sale of 

property. The proposed amendment includes a technical adjustment reversing the 

ordinance amendment approved in March. 

 

 

-187-

C-9.      DRAFT



 

-188-



ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND TAX LEVY 

ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016  
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that the 

Annual Appropriation and Tax Levy Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 be amended to 

cover changes in the following funds as described herein. 

SECTION 1.   That the Annual Appropriation and Tax Levy Ordinance of the City of 

Winston-Salem, adopted on June 15, 2015 and amended on August 17, 2015, September 21, 

2015, October 26, 2015, November 16, 2015, January 19, 2016, February 15, 2016, March 28, 

2016, April 18, 2016, and May 16, 2016, shall be amended by changing the expenditure 

appropriations in the following funds. 

General Fund 

 Public Safety   

    Fire Department Personnel Expenditures  $550,000 

    

 Transportation   

    Supplies and Services  -550,000 

    

 General Government   

    Human Relations   

      Student Banquet  3,940 

      Fair Housing Summit   3,650 

      Youth Advisory Council Fundraiser  50 

      College Advisory Board   250 

      Youth Advisory Council  650 

   8,540 

 

 Total General Fund Expenditures  $8,540 

 

Enterprise Funds 

 Parking Fund   

    Center City West Parking Deck   

       Final Debt Payment  $917,360 

    

-189-

C-9.a.      DRAFT



 Winston-Salem Fairgrounds   

    Non-Fair Events  135,000 

    

 Total Enterprise Funds Expenditures  $1,052,360 

 

SECTION 2.   That the following revenues will be available to meet the above listed 

appropriations. 

General Fund 

Human Relations   

  Contributions  $8,540 

 

Total General Fund Revenues  $8,540 

 
    

Enterprise Funds 

Parking Fund   

   Sale of Property (Center City West Parking Deck)  $917,360 

   

Winston-Salem Fairgrounds   

   Operating Revenues – Rent and Concessions  135,000 

   

Total Enterprise Funds Revenues  $1,052,360 

 

SECTION 3.   That this amendment to the Annual Appropriation and Tax Levy 

Ordinance shall become effective as of the date of adoption. 

-190-

C-9.a.      DRAFT



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

 CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 be amended to cover changes in the 

following funds as described herein. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 15, 2015 and amended on July 20, 2015, August 17, 2015, September 21, 2015, October 

26, 2015, November 16, 2015, December 21, 2015, January 19, 2016, February 15, 2016, March 

28, 2016, April 18, 2016, and May 16, 2016, shall be further amended by changing the 

expenditure appropriations in the following funds. 

Special Revenue Funds 

 Grants Fund   

    Recreation Grants   

       Recreation Trust Accounts $39,370  

    Fair Housing Grants   

       Fair Housing Summit 3,050  

  42,420  
 Urban Development Action Grant (UDAG) Fund   

    Southeast Plaza Revitalizing Urban Commercial Areas (RUCA) Project 250,000  

    

 Economic Development Project Fund   

    Transfer to Capital Projects Fund -90,180  

    

 Forfeiture Funds   

    Training 19,400  

    K-9 19,400  

    Equipment 27,310  

    Police Contributions (K-9 supplies)    8,110  

  74,220  
    

 Total Special Revenue Funds Expenditures $276,460  

 

Capital Projects Fund 

 Transportation Projects   

    Conversion of 4th Street to Two Way $57,130  

    

-191-

C-9.b.      DRAFT



 Economic Development Projects   

   Southeast Plaza Shopping Center -250,000  

   RUCA Infrastructure 159,820  

  -90,180  

 

 Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures -$33,050  

 

Leasing Capital Projects Fund 

 General Government Projects   

    Lowery Street Facility $854,930  

 

 Total Leasing Capital Projects Fund Expenditures $854,930  

 

SECTION 2. That the following revenues will be available to meet the above listed 

appropriations. 

Special Revenue Funds 

 Grants Fund   

    Recreation Grants   

       Contributions $39,370  

    Fair Housing Grants   

       Contributions and Sponsorships 3,050  

  42,420  
 Urban Development Action Grant (UDAG) Fund   

    Fund Balance Appropriation 250,000  

    

 Economic Development Projects Fund   

    Fund Balance Appropriation -90,180  

    

 Forfeiture Funds   

    United States Department of Justice 44,090  

    State Controlled Substance Tax Receipts 22,020  

    Contributions 8,110  

  74,220  
    

 Total Special Revenue Funds Revenues $276,460  

 

Capital Projects Fund 

 Transportation Projects   

    North Carolina Department of Transportation $57,130  

    

    

-192-

C-9.b.      DRAFT



 Economic Development Projects   

   Transfer from Economic Development Project Fund -90,180  

 

 Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures -$33,050  

 

Leasing Capital Projects Fund 

 General Government Projects   

    Property Settlements $854,930  

 

 Total Leasing Capital Projects Fund Revenues $854,930  

 

SECTION 3. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

effective as of the date of adoption. 

-193-

C-9.b.      DRAFT



 

-194-



City Council – Action Request Form 

 

Date: June 13, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 
 

Consideration of Items Related to the Business 40 Project Betterments: 
 

a) Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into An Agreement 
with the North Carolina Department of Transportation for Pedestrian and Sidewalk 
improvements on Cloverdale Avenue and Miller Street; 

b) Project Budget Ordinance Amendment to Appropriate Additional Funds.  
 

Summary of Information:  
 
In February 2016, Council authorized the City Manager to enter into an agreement with The 
North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) to participate in the cost of Pedestrian 
and Sidewalk improvements on the Cloverdale Avenue Pedestrian Improvements Phase 1 and 
Phase 2 and the Miller Street Sidewalk projects for $1,250,000. Staff has since discovered the 
total amount allocated to the City is $1,500,000 from the Secretary of Transportation’s statewide 
contingency funds for Federal Fiscal Year 2016 and Federal Fiscal Year 2017. These funds can 
be spent on non-state system roads and will remain city streets throughout construction. 
 
These projects are scheduled to be complete by Winter 2018. Funds from the 2014 Bonds were 
previously approved for these projects.  
 
Using NCDOT funding for the Cloverdale Road project will allow $1,500,000 in 2014 
Transportation Bonds to be reallocated to the Business 40 Improvement project. 
 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-195-

C-10.      DRAFT



  
This Council Action package includes: 
 

1) A resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into agreements with the NCDOT for 
acceptance of the $1,500,000 in contingency funds for the design and construction cost of  
Cloverdale Avenue Pedestrian Improvements Phase 1 and Phase 2 and the Miller Street 
Sidewalk projects. 

2) A Project Budget Ordinance to reallocate an additional $250,000 in previously approved 
bond funds to improvements to the Business 40 (US 421) project in downtown Winston-
Salem. 

 

-196-

C-10.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION FOR PEDESTRIAN AND SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS ON 

CLOVERDALE AVENUE AND MILLER STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) will participate 

in the cost of improvements for the Cloverdale Avenue Pedestrian Improvements Phase 1 and 

Phase 2 and the Miller Street Sidewalk project; and 

WHEREAS, the NCDOT will appropriate $750,000 over two fiscal years for a total of 

$1,500,000 to be used for the cost of these projects; and 

WHEREAS, the funds for these projects were previously approved in the 2014 Bonds; 

and 

WHEREAS, the previously approved bond funds for these projects will be reallocated to 

the Business 40 Improvement projects. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council authorize 

the City Manager and City Secretary to sign and execute a municipal agreement with the 

NCDOT for the design and construction improvements for the Cloverdale Avenue Pedestrian 

Improvements Phase 1 and Phase 2 and the Miller Street Sidewalk project. 

-197-

C-10.a.      DRAFT



 

-198-



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

 CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 be amended to appropriate funds 

from the North Carolina Department of Transportation for pedestrian and sidewalk 

improvements on Cloverdale Avenue and Miller Street and to reallocate previously approved 

bond funds for Business 40 corridor improvements. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 15, 2015 and amended on July 20, 2015, August 17, 2015, September 21, 2015, October 

26, 2015, November 16, 2015, December 21, 2015, January 19, 2016, February 15, 2016, March 

28, 2016, April 18, 2016, and May 16, 2016, shall be further amended by changing the 

expenditure appropriations in the following fund. 

  
 

  
 Capital Projects Fund 

 

 Transportation Projects   

    Pedestrian and Sidewalk Improvements (Cloverdale Ave and Miller St) $250,000  

    2014 GO Bond STP-DA Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects -250,000  

    2014 GO Bond Business 40 Corridor Improvements 250,000  

 

 Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures $250,000  

    

SECTION 2. That the following revenues will be available to meet the above listed 

appropriations. 

Capital Projects Fund 

 

 Transportation Projects   

     North Carolina Department of Transportation $250,000  

 

 Total Capital Projects Fund Revenues $250,000  

 

 

SECTION 3. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

effective as of the date of adoption. 

-199-

C-10.b.      DRAFT



 

-200-



SUMMARY OF MINUTES 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

4:00 P.M., MONDAY, MAY 9, 2016 

COMMITTEE ROOM 

 

ROOM 239, CITY HALL 

_______________________________________________ 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Allen Joines  

Council Member Robert Clark, Chair 

Council Member Denise D. Adams, Vice Chair 

Council Member Vivian H. Burke  

Council Member Derwin L. Montgomery 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Council Member Molly Leight 

Council Member Jeff MacIntosh 

    Council Member James Taylor, Jr. 

    Council Member Dan Besse 

 

      

Chair Clark called the meeting to order and stated that without objection, the Committee would first 

consider the Consent Agenda. Council Member Montgomery removed Items C-5, C-6, C-8 and 

Council Member Adams removed Item C-10 for discussion. No other items were removed. 

 

Council Member Clark made a motion to approve the balance of the Consent Agenda. The motion 

was duly seconded by Council Member Adams and carried unanimously. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Property Matters 

 

C-1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED 

PROPERTY AT 630 BROOKWOOD BUSINESS PARK DRIVE UNDER THE UPSET 

BID PROCEDURE (N.C.G.S. 160A-269) (NORTHEAST WARD). 

 

  C-2.        RESOLUTION GRANTING PERMANENT UTILITY  EASEMENTS  PURSUANT       

                

      TO N.C.G.S. 160-273 TO DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, LLC FOR THE SITE OF 

      POLICE DISTRICT ONE AT 7836  NORTH    POINT    BOULEVARD    (NORTH- 

      WARD). 

 

  C-3.        RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL OR TRIAD ECO ADVENTURES  

      TO PURCHASE THE CITY’S TWO BUS TROLLEYS. 

 

-201-

C-11.      DRAFT



FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES July 11, 2011   Page 2 

C-4. REPORT ON DEMOLITION ASSESSMENT AT 4640 INDIANA AVENUE. 

 

  Finance/Budget 

 

   C-7.       RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR A FIRE PUMPER TRUCK 

      -The Sutphen Corporation - $521,424.65. 

    

 C-9. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 

BUDGET ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH 

CAROLINA: 

 

a. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND TAX LEVY 

ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016. 

 

b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

2015-2016. 

 

C-11. 

 

 

 

C-12.  

        

 

 

 

C-13.  

      

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE BY DONATION OF SURPLUS 

RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION (NORTHWEST WARD). 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE PROPERTY, 

BOILER/MACHINERY INSURANCE FROM BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY 

THROUGH SURRY INSURANCE. [$344,433] 

 

 

APPROVAL OF FINANCE SUMMARY OF MINUTES – April 11, 2016. 

  C-5.       RESOLUTION REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR FIRE STATIONS 7 AND 9  

                RENOVATIONS. 

   

  C-6. RESOLUTION REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF                                       

               SPRAYGROUNDS AT REYNOLDS PARK POOL AND SEDGE GARDEN PARK. 

 

Mr. Jerry Bates, City-County Purchasing Director, presented Items C-5 and C-6 together because 

they had similar issues. For Item C-5, the lowest responsible bidder did not achieve the M/WBE 

goals established for the project and the other bids were rejected due to being substantially over 

budget. The recommendation is that the projects be rebid. 

 

For Item C-6, Mr. Bates explained the lowest responsible bidder failed to follow bidding 

instructions. The vendor submitted a bid with their own specifications and therefore the bid was 

rejected based on not following the guidelines. 

 

-202-

C-11.      DRAFT



FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES July 11, 2011   Page 3 

In response to Council Member Montgomery, Mr. Bates stated the law requires the vendor to 

advertise for 10 days. 

 

Council Member Burke requested staff invite vendors to attend Finance Committee meetings and 

staff should test the system with the given issues. 

 

Council Member Adams stated that some businesses may have already been contracted for other 

jobs. She requested a periodic compliance check be performed and staff provide Council with a 

report. She also requested a report on how this will delay the timeline for the proposed structures. 

 

In response to Council Member Clark, Mr. Bates stated staff has spoken with the contractors on 

numerous occasions. Approval from the State has been given for the City of Winston-Salem to award 

points for providing the information to vendors in their advertisements for bidding. 

 

Council Member Clark requested Mr. Bates inquire with the low-bidder to provide more information 

about the bonding process where it relates to the financial statuses and credit lines. 

 

In response to Council Member MacIntosh, Mr. Bates stated the information concerning the four 

points awarded by the State came from the City Advisory Board which was held by Ms. Tiesha 

Hinton. 

 

Council Member Burke made a motion to adopt resolutions C-5 and C-6; rejecting all bids. The 

motion was duly seconded by Council Member Adams and carried unanimously. 

 

C-8.      RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS TO REQUEST  FOR  FINANCIAL  

             ASSISTANCE FROM WEXFORD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY (WEXFORD) FOR THE 

             BAILEY POWER  PLANT   REDEVELOPMENT   UNDER   DOWNTOWN  DEVELOP- 

             MENT PROVISIONS (N.C.G.S. 160A-458.3). 

 

Mr. Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager, stated the resolution was originally approved by City 

Council in December 2015. The grant was for $3,000,000 and the amount did not change; however, 

three issues have been identified that need to be modified. Bailey Power Plant has been sold to 

Wexford so Wake Forest Innovation Quarter is no longer included in the ownership. The timing 

changed from a 10 year deal to a 12 year due to construction phasing and a catch up provision is 

being requested in case taxes come in less than projected over some period of time and an extra two 

years is being requested. 

 

In response to Council Member Burke, Mr. Paige stated the original agreement committed to the 

concept of developing a minority business initiative of the incubator. 

 

Council Member Burke made a motion to approve the item.  The motion was duly seconded by 

Council Member Clark and unanimously carried. 

 

Council Member Adams made a motion to approve the item. The motion was duly seconded by 

Council Member Burke and carried unanimously. 

 

-203-

C-11.      DRAFT



FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES July 11, 2011   Page 4 

C-10. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATING TO THE 28TH STREET STORMWATER 

DRAINAGE   IMPROVEMENTS    SAND  WATER  AND SEWER  REPLACEMENT: 

 

a.       RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CHANGE TO CHARLES D. LOWDER 

         INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $308,000 FOR WORK ON THE 28TH STREET 

         STORMWATER DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS AND WATER AND  

         SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT (NORTHEAST WARD).   

 

b.       ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 

          INSTON-SALEM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016. 

 

In response to Council Member Adams, Stormwater Director Mr. Keith Huff reported, there were 

several different components concerning the $308,000 for the project. First, the shut-down of the 28th 

Street project resulted in the ingress/egress modes for the project. The traffic fair routes were 

congesting the work areas. So with the fair in conjunction to Wake Forest sporting activities it was 

ideal to shut down the project. Second, to avoid the traffic impacts the contractor had to demobilize 

and eventually another mobilization fee was accessed. The trenches of water/sewer contained 

unsuitable soil which caused a back fill and led to PCE/TCE soil vapor contamination and had to be 

monitored for safety of the employees. 

 

Council Member Burke made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 

Council Member Adams and carried unanimously. 

 

GENERAL AGENDA 

 

G-1.         RESOLUTION APPROVING   THE    FISCAL YEAR   2016-2017     OPERATING  

                MEMORANDUM BETWEEN THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM AND THE RISK 

                ACCEPTANCE MANAGEMENT CORPORATION. 

 

Chief Financial Officer, Lisa Saunders gave a presentation on this item. 

 

In response to Council Member Burke, Ms. Saunders stated staff includes a Worker’s Compensation 

Claims Adjuster, Worker’s Compensation Nurse (case nurse manager) and a Wellness Nurse; all 

paid from the Worker’s Compensation program. 

 

In response to Council Member MacIntosh, Ms. Saunders stated in the event claims are above 

$250,000, the Worker’s Compensation fund supplements the excess cost. City employees pay 2% 

into the funds to supplement and anything over and above and RAMCO reimburses the City. 

 

Council Member Adams made a motion to approve the item. The motion was duly seconded by 

Council Member Montgomery and carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

-204-

C-11.      DRAFT



FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES July 11, 2011   Page 5 

G-2.        CONSIDERATION OF ADDITIONAL FINANCING FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF  

               SINGLE-FAMILY HOUSING IN RIDGEWOOD PLACE (SOUTHEAST WARD). 

 

a.  RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL FINANCING FOR DEVELOP- 

    MENT IN THE RIDGEWOOD PLACE SUBDIVISION TO S.G. ATKINS               

    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION. [$1,325,000.] 

                    

b.  ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

    CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016. 

 

Community Business & Development Director Ritchie Brooks gave a presentation on the item. 

 

In response to Council Member Montgomery, Mr. Brooks stated the recycling of the HOME funds 

will stay under the same regulation as the bonds. The housing finance and general obligation loans 

are handled by the Council as it sees fit. 

 

In response to Council Member Clark, Ms. Carol Davis Director of Simon G. Atkins Community 

Development Corporation reported, the completion on the development agreement of Ridgewood 

and the five units was in February/March 2016. Since then, a general contractor has been hired and 

has surveyed the first two lots. The paperwork has been submitted. 

 

Council Member Adams made a motion to approve the item. The motion was duly seconded by    

Council Member Burke and carried unanimously. 

 

G-3.       RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO $236,000 IN ADDITIONAL PERMANENT  

              FINANCING  FOR  THE DEVELOPMENT  OF 64 UNITS OF RENTAL HOUSING  

              FOR FAMILIES, TO  BE  KNOWN  AS   ROCKWOOD AT OLIVER’S CROSSING 

              APARTMENTS (SOUTH WARD). 

 

Council Member Burke requested information concerning the responsibility of previous homeowners 

to new homeowners if dirt has been buried on the property. 

 

Representative for the developer, Ms. Carolyn Scroggins reported the seller of the property was an 

elderly woman and her son, unbeknownst to her had been utilizing the property as a business. He had 

buried debris which included car parts, tree parts, oil, etc. From the lawsuit filed, funds were 

recovered for damages in the amount of $40,000, which the son contributed to. 

 

Council Member Burke made recommendation to review this item more extensively. 

 

In response to Council Member Adams, Ms. Scoggins stated due to the HOME funds being used for 

this project; environmental clearance was required. Nothing came back out of the ordinary and HUD 

signed off on that clearance. The grading commenced and the developer opted to pay costs incurred 

out-of-pocket, to get the project placed in service at the projected time. The project was already 

behind due to unpredicted tax credits and as of December 31, 2015 the Certificate of Occupancy was 

completed. 

 

-205-

C-11.      DRAFT



FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES July 11, 2011   Page 6 

In response to Council Member Montgomery, Ms. Scoggins stated the City loan is for 20 years at 2% 

interest and with a cash flow pay back. There are currently 64 units and half of them are at 60% and 

under, while the other half are at 50% and under. The percentages are based on income 

qualifications. Currently there is a total of eight homes on the property and due to federal tax credits, 

the overall restriction is 30 years.  

 

By consensus, the Committee agreed to hold this item for discussion in June. 

 

G-4.        ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE  

               CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE  FISCAL  YEAR  

               2015-2016. 

 

Council Member Clark made a motion to excuse Council Member Montgomery from this item due 

to conflict of interest. The motion was duly seconded by Council Member Adams and carried with 

two in favor, one excused, and one abstaining from the vote. 

 

Assistant City Manager, Ben Rowe gave a presentation on this item. 

 

Council Member Adams requested information on criteria for agencies to surpass funds for the 

emergency solutions. 

 

Council Member Adams made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 

Council Member Burke and carried unanimously. 

 

G-5.        RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN          

               INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE AIRPORT COMMISSION OF FOR- 

               OF FORSYTH COUNTY FOR INFRASTRUCTURE AND HANGAR. 

 

Mr. Rowe gave a presentation on this item. 

 

Mr. Scott Piper, Airport Commission Chair, reported it is a good time for the airport, and being a 

part of the Innovation Quarter would be a positive outcome for the Airport. 

 

Council Member Burke commended Mr. Piper. 

 

Council Member Adams made a motion to approve this item. This motion was duly seconded by 

Council Member Burke and carried unanimously. 

 

G-6.        PRESENTATION FROM THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-SALEM 

               REGARDING THE CHOICE NEIGHBORHOODS IMPLEMENTATION GRANT. 

 

Mr. Larry Woods, Chief Executive Officer HAWS, gave a presentation on this item. 

 

Council Member Adams requested information on the financial status of Hope VI for Happy Hills 

and Kimberly Park housing developments. 

 

-206-

C-11.      DRAFT



FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES July 11, 2011   Page 7 

In response to Council Member Montgomery, Mr. Woods stated HAWS is completing the 

developments in the community as related to Piedmont Park. The larger development will be divided 

into four smaller developments. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 6:05 p.m. 

        

 

  

  

  

 

-207-

C-11.      DRAFT



 

-208-


	AGENDA
	GENERAL AGENDA
	**
	G-1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM TO PARTICIPATE IN THE SUBMISSION OF A CHOICE NEIGHBORHOODS PLANNING GRANT WITH THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-SALEM.
	[CARF - Choice Neighbborhoods Implementation Grant, rev 6.7.16.docx]
	[Resolution - Choice Neighbhoods Implementation Grant, rev 6.7.16.docx]
	[Choice Case Management Services Exhibit A.pdf]

	G-2. INFORMATION REGARDING A REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE FROM THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF WINSTON-SALEM FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT OF NEW HOPE MANOR APARTMENTS.
	[Memo - HAWS New Hope Manor Apartments, rev 6.7.16.docx]

	G-3. RESOLUTION APPROVING VARIOUS LEASE AGREEMENTS AND ESTOPPELS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE SALE OF THE DOWNTOWN MARRIOTT AND EMBASSY SUITES HOTELS TO HOSPITALITY VENTURES MANAGEMENT GROUP.
	[Lease Agreements and Estoppels - Marriott and Embassy Suites - CARF.doc.docx]
	[Lease Agreements and Estoppels - Marriott and Embassy Suites - RES.doc.docx]

	G-4. REPORT ON DEMOLITION ASSESSMENT AT 4640 INDIANA AVENUE.
	[4640 Indiana Ave Demo Assessment 4-19-16.docx]
	[4640 Indiana Ave Demo Assess - Attachment.pdf]

	G-5. REVIEW OF PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 BUDGET.
	[Finance Budget workshop powerpoint.pdf]



	??CONSENT AGENDA
	Property Matters
	C-1.  RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AT 2619 BETHABARA ROAD FOR NEW PARK CONSTRUCTION (NORTH WARD).
	[Property Acquisition - 2619 Bethabara Road - CARF.doc]
	[Property Acquisition - 2619 Bethabara Road - RESOLUTION.doc]
	[Property Acquisition - 2619 Bethabara Road - MAP.pdf]

	C-2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED PROPERTY AT 426 WEST CLEMMONSVILLE ROAD UNDER THE UPSET BID PROCEDURE N.C.G.S. 160A-269 (SOUTHEAST WARD). [$35,000].
	[Property Disposition - Upset Bid - 426 W. Clemmonsville Road  - CARF.doc]
	[Property Disposition - Upset Bid - 426 W. Clemmonsville Road  - RESOLUTION.doc]
	[Property Disposition - Upset Bid - 426 W. Clemmonsville Road -MAP.pdf]


	Community and Economic Development
	C-3. RESOLUTION DESIGNATING WHITAKER PARK DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, INC. AS THE BEST QUALIFIED DEVELOPER AND ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR APPROVAL OF THE PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP CONTRACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 143-128.1C. Public Hearing: August 15, 2016. 
	[WPDA, Inc. Designated Best Qualified Developer - CARF.doc]
	[WPDA, Inc. Designated Best Qualified Developer - Resolution.doc]
	[WPDA, Inc. Designed Best Qualified Developer - Exhibit A.doc]

	C-4. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATING TO THE DOWNTOWN WINSTON-SALEM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT:
	[Memo - Oversight and Controls - Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District.docx]
	[Consideration of Items Relating to the Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District - CARF.doc]
	a. RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT WITH THE DOWNTOWN WINSTON-SALEM PARTNERSHIP TO PROVIDE SERVICES WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN WINSTON-SALEM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT.
	[Contract Award of Business Improvement District Services - Resolution.docx]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 OF THE CITY CODE ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATION”.
	[Proposed Changes to BID Advisory Committee - City Code Revised.docx]


	C-5. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO $236,000 IN ADDITIONAL PERMANENT FINANCING FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 64 UNITS OF RENTAL HOUSING FOR FAMILIES, TO BE KNOWN AS ROCKWOOD AT OLIVER’S CROSSING APARTMENTS (SOUTH WARD). Items continued from the April and May meetings of the Finance and Community Development/Housing/General Government Committees. 
	[Rockwood Addl Funds Memo May 2016.docx]
	[Rockwood Addl Funds Memo From Legal.docx]
	[Rockwood at Olivers Crossing Addl Funds May 2016 CARF.doc]
	[Rockwood at Olivers Crossing Addl Funds May 2016 RES.doc]


	Finance/Budget
	C-6. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO CONTRACTS:
	a. RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH DATA NETWORK SOLUTIONS, INC. FOR COMPUTER STORAGE EQUIPMENT- Data Network Solutions, Inc. $309,754.00.
	[CARF Storage Controllers June 2016.docx]
	[Resolution Storage Controllers June 2016.docx]
	[CARF Storage Controllers Exhibit A June 2016.docx]

	b. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR DITCH MAINTENANCE - Carolina Asphalt Paving, Inc. - $361,250 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Ditch Maintenance     6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Ditch Maintenance     6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit B - BT - Ditch Maintenance     6-20-16.xlsx.pdf]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Carolina Asphalt Paving    6-20-16.xlsx.pdf]

	c. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR STRUCTURE ADJUSTMENTS - Ascent Construction Solutions, LLC - $149,875.00 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Structure Adjustments  rev  6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Structure Adjustments     6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Ascent Construction    6-20-16.pdf]
	[Exhibit B - BT - Structure Adjustments     6-20-16.pdf]

	d. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION ALONG OLD TOWN DRIVE - Dalton Contracting, LLC-$122,789 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Old Town Drive     6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Old Town Drive       6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Dalton Contracting   6-20-16.pdf]

	e. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR CONCRETE BASE STREETS REHABILITATION - APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Thompson-Arthur Division - $3,097,298 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - concrete base streets rehabilitation      6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - concrete base streets rehabilitation      6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - concrete base streets rehabilitation      6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit B - Workforce Demographics - APAC    6-20-16  concrete base streets rehabilitation.pdf]

	f. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR ROAD SALT - The Detroit Salt Company, LLC. - $202,440 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Road Salt    6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Road Salt    6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Detroit Salt Company   6-20-16.pdf]

	g. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR CONVENTIONAL CAB TRUCK WITH HOOK LIFT HOIST BODY - White's Tractor and Truck Co., LLC. - $128,540.67 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Hooklift Truck for Veg Mgt    6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Hooklift Truck for Veg Mgt    6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Whites Tractor and Truck LLC      6-20-16.pdf]

	h. RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE ORDER FOR VEHICLE PARTS AND SUPPLIES - NAPA Auto Parts, Inc. - $150,000 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF-NAPA - Auto Parts  6-20-16.doc]
	[RE - vehicle parts - NAPA    6-20-16.docx]

	i. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDERS FOR AUTO AND TRUCK TIRES - Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company- $100,000 (Estimated Amount);Parrish Tire Company, Inc. - $120,000 (Estimated Amount);Mock Tire & Automotive, Inc.- $70,000 (Estimated Amount);and Snider Tire Company - $160,000 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - vehicle tires    6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - vehicle tires    6-20-16.docx]

	j. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDERS FOR EQUIPMENT FOR THE FLEET DEPARTMENT WITH CERTAIN SOLE SOURCE VENDORS - Various Vendors - $982,000 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Award Purchase Orders for Sole Source Vendors      6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Award Purchase Orders for Sole Source Vendors      6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Sole Source vendors 2016-2017.xls.pdf]

	k. RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE ORDER FOR AUTO AND TRUCK PARTS AND SUPPLIES -Auto Supply Company, Inc.- $130,000 (Estimated Amount); Carquest Auto Parts - $90,000 (Estimated Amount); and Auto Zone Stores, LLC - $35,000 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Auto and Truck Parts-Supplies   6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Auto and Truck Parts-Supplies   6-20-16.docx]

	l. RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE ORDER FOR TOWING SERVICES - Davis Garage, Inc.- $120,000 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - towing services - Davis Garage   6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - towing services - Davis Garage   6-20-16.docx]

	m. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SPRAYGROUND AT REYNOLDS PARK POOL - DreamBuilt Construction, Inc. - $297,250 (Estimated Amount).
	[CARF - Sprayground at Reynolds Park Pool   6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Sprayground at Reynolds Park Pool       6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Dreambuilt    6-20-16.pdf]

	n. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SPRAYGROUND AT SEDGE GARDEN PARK.

	[CARF - Sprayground at Sedge Garden Park   6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Sprayground at Sedge Garden Park      6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Crest Construction Corp   6-20-16.pdf]


	C-7. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO CONTRACT FOR WINSTON LAKE AQUATIC PARK:
	[CARF - Winston Lake Aquatic Park     6-20-16.docx]
	[Exhibit A - Workforce Demographics - Bar Construction      6-20-16.pdf]
	a. RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR WINSTON LAKE AQUATIC PARK -Bar Construction Company - $4,713,000 (Estimated Amount).
	[RE - Winston Lake Aquatic Park     6-20-16.docx]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016.

	[PBO - Winston Lake Aquatic Park     6-20-16.docx]


	C-8. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGERTOWAIVE BONDING REQUIREMENTS BELOW THE STATUTORY LIMITS.
	[CARF - Authorizing City Manager to Waive Bond Requirements   6-20-16.docx]
	[RE - Authorizing City Manager to Waive Bond Requirements   6-20-16.docx]

	C-9. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 BUDGET ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA:
	[June 2016 Budget Amendment - CARF.doc]
	a. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND TAX LEVY ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016.

	[June 2016 Budget Amendment - AATLO.docx]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016.

	[June 2016 Budget Amendment - PBO.docx]



	Transportation
	C-10. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS 40 PROJECT BETTERMENTS:
	[NCDOTContingencyFundApproval - CARF.doc]
	a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR PEDESTRIAN AND SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS ON CLOVERDALE AVENUE AND MILLER STREET.
	[NCDOTContingencyFundApproval - Resolution.doc]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016.


	[NCDOT Contingency - PBO.doc]



	General Government
	C-11. APPROVAL OF FINANCE COMMITTEESUMMARY OF MINUTES - May 9, 2016.
	[Finance Committe Minutes May 9 2016 Summaries.doc]




